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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome

          3  everyone, to this hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee.

          5                 Today, we will focus on the City's

          6  E-911 System, specifically how well the system

          7  functions, the state of our wireless technology, and

          8  where are the E-911 surcharge collected by the State

          9  from wireless phone users since 1991 has been spent.

         10                 Let me just mention right off the bat

         11  that today most of the City Council is up in Albany,

         12  lobbying Albany for our money, and some of the money

         13  they are lobbying for is this money. So, we thought

         14  it was too important, I spoke to the Council members

         15  on this Committee who are up there, it was too

         16  important to put this hearing off and delay it any

         17  further.  So, many of our Committee members are up

         18  there today fighting for this money, while some of

         19  us, like Council Member Monserrate and I, are here

         20  today doing the same thing.

         21                 About two and one-half weeks ago, 14

         22  teenage boys were apparently sinking in a sinking

         23  rowboat near City Island, called the New York City

         24  Police Department's 911 operators from a Sprint PCS

         25  Wireless Phone.  The call lasted 12 seconds; it
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          2  could not be traced because the technology to

          3  pinpoint the number and the exact location was not

          4  yet in place.  In addition, the newly hired 911

          5  operator and her supervisor failed to notify the

          6  NYPD's Harbor Unit as required by procedure.

          7  Although, the caller did indicate he was on the Long

          8  Island Sound.  The boys have not yet been found.

          9                 This incident is highlighted a number

         10  of concerns about our City's 911 System, and this

         11  Committee will review those issues today.  As you

         12  are aware, a 911 System is at the mercy of the

         13  telephone service that automatically connects the

         14  person dialing to an established public service

         15  answering point.  An enhanced 911 system, however,

         16  also provides the telephone number as well as

         17  location of the person placing the call.  Currently,

         18  in New York City any 911 call from a land- based

         19  access line, anything other than a wireless phone

         20  will display the caller's number and address

         21  location on the 911 operator's screen at 11

         22  Metrotech in Brooklyn, the City's Public Safety

         23  Answering Center.

         24                 As you may imagine, this information

         25  is vital and reduces the amount of time spent on the
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          2  telephone, thereby, expediting the arrival of

          3  emergency personnel, and is absolutely critical when

          4  a caller is sick, injured, lost or disoriented, or

          5  otherwise unable to reveal his or her location.  The

          6  automatic provision of this vital information to 911

          7  operators is not available to those who call from a

          8  wireless phone, as was tragically revealed on

          9  January 24th, off the cost of City Island.         The

         10  technology exists to provide this information

         11  referred to as Phase I and Phase II, which we will

         12  explain later. But the City has not implemented this

         13  service because in the case of Phase II, it does not

         14  have the software to do so.

         15                 We will hear, today, from the NYPD's

         16  Communication Division, as well as wireless carriers

         17  to discuss the state of this technology, why it is

         18  not yet functioning and what can be done to ensure

         19  that it is fully operational as soon as possible.

         20                 The second issue contains the

         21  training and staffing of the Public Answering Center

         22  in Brooklyn.  Union Leaders have complained that

         23  staffing levels are insufficient, and that they

         24  receive approximately 300 directives of memos each

         25  year implementing policy changes.  According to the
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          2  Union, these memos are often not adequately

          3  explained, and proper training is not offered.  For

          4  example, the directive indicating that all calls

          5  from a body of water should be submitted to the

          6  harbor unit was issued in September.  The time spent

          7  on the training of these new policy changes is

          8  therefore vitally important.

          9                 Last, but certainly not least, the

         10  State, since 1991, has collected a surcharge from

         11  wireless phone users.  Up until last year that

         12  surcharge was $.70, it is now $1.20 with an

         13  additional $.30 cents going to the City.  In an

         14  audit released last year, the State Comptroller

         15  estimated that as of March 2002, approximately $162

         16  million had been collected by the State, and it was

         17  supposed to be used for the enhancement of our

         18  Statewide 911 System.  However, it was not, the

         19  money was taken, New York City resident money was

         20  taken by New York State and used for New York State

         21  purposes, in this instance the State Trooper System.

         22                 New York City does not use the State

         23  Trooper System, so our tax money was taken and used

         24  for State purposes, was not used to enhance our 911

         25  System the way it was supposed to be used. Now,
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          2  although, we have amended, that law has been

          3  amended, as I said, and it is now $1.20, it is not

          4  clear how much money New York City will receive out

          5  of that $1.20, and we would like to review that

          6  issue today, also.

          7                 We expect to hear from the NYPD, who

          8  is sitting there waiting to go.  The union

          9  representing the 911 workers, some phone company

         10  operators, the State Comptroller's Office, and Sally

         11  Reganhard from the Skyscrapers Campaign and other

         12  interested members of the public.  We did invited,

         13  obviously, the State, Governor Pataki and his

         14  representatives, the State Criminal Justice

         15  Coordinator's Office, they have apparently declined

         16  our invitation. You know, that is par for the

         17  course.

         18                 Let me read to you a quoted, when

         19  Pataki was asked last week, if the delay in

         20  implementing 911 played a role in the City Allen

         21  tragedy, his quote was, and I quote from the

         22  newspapers, "I do not think that is worthy of a

         23  comment."  Well, today, apparently New York City is

         24  still not worthy of an explanation as to where our

         25  money went.  And the families of these young boys
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          2  are not worthy of an explanation as to why the

          3  safety of the New York City citizens has not been a

          4  priority for our State.

          5                 We hope that this hearing will result

          6  in some changes, and you know it already has,

          7  because yesterday, some of you may have seen there

          8  was a press conference in Albany with some of the

          9  families of the young boys who drowned.  And our

         10  State Legislature, 13 years later, or 12 years

         11  later, has decided to call to find out why we do not

         12  have the technology here and where the money has

         13  gone.  Ironically, one day before this hearing, so

         14  we have already had some effect.  You know, the City

         15  Council has been calling for many, many years on the

         16  Governor to account for this money that we have sent

         17  up, and to improve 911.

         18                 As recently as April, when I

         19  introduced a resolution long before this tragedy

         20  calling on the State to use this money for 911, it

         21  took a tragedy for Albany to move on this.  We are

         22  thankful that they are finally are, but that is the

         23  purpose of today's hearing, to find out what took so

         24  long.

         25                 We will hear first today, from the
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          2  New York City Police Department.  We thank you for

          3  coming down, please identify yourselves and begin

          4  with your prepared statement.

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, I am

          6  Deputy Chief Gilmartin.  I am responsible for the

          7  Office of Technology in systems development, which

          8  is comprised of two divisions, the Communications

          9  Division and the MIS Division for Computer Services.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And who do you

         11  have with you today?

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  This is

         13  Deputy Inspector Chuck Dowd, and he is the

         14  Commanding Officer of the Communications Division.

         15  And I have Claire Maroney, who is on the new CAD

         16  Implementation Team.

         17                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members

         18  for the Council. I appreciate the opportunity to

         19  provide the Council with the current status of 911

         20  and our efforts to implement enhanced wireless 911.

         21  I am pleased to discuss with you the Police

         22  Department's 911 system and its operation.

         23                 In recent years, while our workload

         24  has increased, significant progress has been made

         25  toward efficiency and productivity.  I will briefly
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          2  highlight these achievements for you now.

          3                 First, call volume to 911 continues

          4  to increase.  In 2002, over 12 million calls were

          5  made to 911, compared with 11.5 million in 2000.

          6  Wireless 911 calls have increased from 14 percent of

          7  the calls answered at the end of 1999, to

          8  approximately 30 percent today.  There are now 1,058

          9  employees in the Police Communications Technician

         10  title assigned to 911 functions.  While this number

         11  has remained relatively constant, we have

         12  experienced substantial productivity improvements

         13  over the past two years by reducing the average 911

         14  call processing time from 130 seconds to 109

         15  seconds, a decrease of 16 percent.  And a dispatch

         16  time for crimes in progressive from 3.7 to 2.1

         17  minutes, a decrease of 35 percent.

         18                 During the same time period the 911

         19  call center has increased the number of operators

         20  dedicated to handling Spanish speaking 911 calls.

         21  As a result, we have reduced our reliance on outside

         22  language interpreter services from 45 percent of the

         23  Spanish calls to 15 percent.  The language

         24  interpreter services that the 911 Center utilizes is

         25  capable of assisting with interpretation in over 140
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          2  languages.

          3                 I would like to update you on the

          4  status of Enhanced Wireless 911 implementation.  The

          5  NYPD's Public Safety Answering Center, PSAC, has

          6  been receiving cellular 911 calls since the

          7  implementation of wireless technology in the he mid-

          8  July 1980's. Hardline calls began receiving

          9  Automatic Number Identification/Automatic Location

         10  Identification (ANI- ALI) in December, 1995, while

         11  wireless calls did not provide that feature. The

         12  only information transmitted with the wireless call

         13  was the name of the carrier and its billing number.

         14  In 1996, the Federal Communications Commission

         15  mandated that wireless carriers provide public

         16  safety answering centers with the telephone number

         17  and approximate location of wireless 911 callers by

         18  October of 2001. The technology was to be

         19  implemented in two phases, Phase I would provide the

         20  caller's telephone number and the location and

         21  sector of the cell site transmitting the call.

         22  Phase II would additionally provide the approximate

         23  location of the caller by transmitting the latitude

         24  and longitude to the PSAC.  The FCC required that a

         25  cost recovery mechanism for both the carriers and
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          2  PSAC be in place before the carriers could be asked

          3  to implement either phase.  The PSAC was also

          4  required to demonstrate the ability to utilize the

          5  latitude and longitude data prior to requesting the

          6  carriers to implement Phase II.

          7                 The Department met with the wireless

          8  carriers in December of 1999 to discuss requirement

          9  for Phase I implementation. As a result of that

         10  meeting, the NYPD began an investigation of

         11  legislative initiatives that would provide for the

         12  sharing of revenues collected under the New York

         13  State Wireless Surcharge. The wireless carriers has

         14  joined with County PSAC coordinators and other

         15  interested parties in the State to form the New York

         16  State Wireless Coalition whose aim it was to draft

         17  the legislation that would meet the requirements for

         18  cost recovery for PSACs.  The NYPD attended meetings

         19  with the coalition to protect the interest of the

         20  Department's 911 System.  The effort to get

         21  legislation passed by this State was not successful.

         22    However, in 2002 the Legislature amended the law

         23  to enact a distribution mechanism for State Wireless

         24  Phone Surcharge, and also to allow localities to

         25  enact their own surcharge for wireless telephones.
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          2  New York City enacted a wireless surcharge in

          3  October of 2002.

          4                 In the summer of 2001, the FCC

          5  rendered an opinion on the apportionment of cost for

          6  implementation of Enhanced Wireless 911.  The

          7  opinion clarified that the demarcation point for

          8  allocating costs between carriers and PSACs was to

          9  be the 911 switch.  This relieved the PSACs for the

         10  cost of carrier network and cell side upgrades.

         11  With this impediment removed, the NYPD invited all

         12  wireless carriers serving the New York City area to

         13  a meeting on September 12th, 2001.  Due to the

         14  events of September 11th of 2001, the meeting was

         15  postponed and rescheduled for January of 2002.

         16                 Subsequent to the Phase I kickoff

         17  meeting in January 2002, the Department hired a

         18  consultant and began the process of planning with

         19  the carriers for Phase I implementation.  Over the

         20  following months carriers submitted plans, network

         21  designs, and testing procedures, which were reviewed

         22  and approved jointly by the NYPD Team and the

         23  consultant.  With the Department's cooperation,

         24  testing took place starting in March of 2002.  From

         25  September to December 2002, the carriers began the
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          2  live cut over to Phase I, one site at a time.  By

          3  the end of December, there was substantial cut over

          4  to Phase I for all carriers with the exception of T-

          5  Mobile and Cingular, who have committed to Phase I

          6  completion by March 1st, 2003.  The implementation

          7  resulted in minimal cost to the Department, which

          8  were funded by OMB.

          9                 Phase II was originally planned for

         10  implementation with the Department's new Computer

         11  Aided Dispatch system, which includes the

         12  capabilities for Phase II wireless call processing.

         13  The date for the CAD implementation is now

         14  anticipated for the end of 2005, therefore, a

         15  decision was made to explore an interim solution for

         16  Phase II.  We are working with our 911 system's

         17  integrator to develop the interim solution which

         18  would pinpoint latitude and longitude on a map

         19  residing on the call takers work station.  Over the

         20  following weeks, we will continue working towards a

         21  viable interim solution.  Once the solution is

         22  proven, the Department will notify the carriers to

         23  begin Phase II implementation.  The carriers are

         24  then required to begin transmitting location

         25  information within six months.
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          2                 The FCC standards for location

          3  accuracy are:  50 meters for 67 percent of the calls

          4  and 150 meters for 95 percent of the calls by

          5  December of 2005, for handset based solutions.  For

          6  network based solutions it is 100 meters for 67

          7  percent of the calls, and 300 meters for 95 percent

          8  of the calls.  As the technology improves, it is

          9  expected that consumers buying new phones will

         10  receive the benefit of the new technology, but there

         11  is no requirement that phones presently own must be

         12  replaced.  The FCC requires the carriers that have

         13  elected the handset solution as their primary

         14  location technology have 95 percent of their

         15  telephones equipped with global positioning system

         16  by the end of 2005.

         17                 One final comment on wireless 911

         18  calls.  The availability of Wireless Phase II

         19  location information will not be complete for

         20  several years.  At present few cell phones contain

         21  the global positioning system technology, which

         22  allows for Phase II information to be transmitted.

         23  The penetration of the GPS technology in dependent

         24  upon the public's acceptance and purchase of new

         25  devices.
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          2                 As you can see, the technical

          3  challenges faced by the industry and the local

          4  governments are significant.  However, we are

          5  committed to taking advantage of every available

          6  resource to make wireless E- 911 a reality in New

          7  York City.

          8                 I appreciate this opportunity to

          9  share the status of 911 with you.  We will be

         10  pleased to answer any questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  Let

         12  me start out with your testimony.  You said, Phase I

         13  is the ability to receive the callers telephone

         14  number and location and sector of the cell site

         15  transmitting the call.  Is that 100 percent

         16  operational now?

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  It is 100

         18  percent operational.  There are two mobile carriers,

         19  Cingular and T- Mobile, which have not yet complied

         20  with the Phase I implementation.  And even with the

         21  carriers that are compliant, we would say they are

         22  substantially compliant and there might be cell

         23  sites, which are not so compliant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And you said

         25  the Cingular and T- Mobile would be in March?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  March 1st,

          3  is what they have committed to us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And if they do

          5  not?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  If they do

          7  not, at that time we will notify the FCC that they

          8  are not in compliance, and then the FCC will be

          9  required to deal with them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Not what

         11  exactly does that mean, the sector of the cell site

         12  transmitting the call, what information is provided

         13  to you?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  What is

         15  provided is the location of the tower that receives

         16  the signal, and the sector of that tower that

         17  actually received it.  An antennae faces, it is on

         18  the directional, but it can differentiate from which

         19  direction the signal hit it, and we get that

         20  information.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How many towers

         22  are there, what type of location are we speaking

         23  about?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  There are

         25  towers placed throughout the City, and some outside
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          2  of the City, as was the case in the City Island

          3  incident.  The signal was first picked up by a site

          4  in Westchester.  And while we are capable of Phase I

          5  technology, Westchester is not.  So, when we

          6  received that signal through their antennae, the

          7  Phase I information was not passed onto us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How many towers

          9  are there in New York City?

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I do not

         11  have that number.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Are we talking

         13  six or six thousand, an approximate number?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  There would

         15  be many more than six, I do not think it is quite

         16  six thousand, but I could not really speak

         17  authoritatively on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well we are

         19  trying to figure out what ability you have to

         20  pinpoint a call right now, if the towers are every

         21  few blocks, then you would have that ability.  If it

         22  is every county, then it would not be all that much

         23  use to find out what tower it came through.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Excuse me

         25  one second. Depending on the tomograph, the - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Can you speak

          3  into the mic, please, you can pull it closer to you?

          4    Thank you.

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Depending on

          6  how flat the land is the cell sites could be miles

          7  away from where they are picked up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  For example, on

          9  City Island, had it not been picked up, well, why

         10  was it picked up by Westchester, was there not a

         11  closer tower?

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We looked

         13  into that, and it appears that there were closer

         14  towers that, in New York City to it, however, they

         15  might have been blocked by land.  The cell sites

         16  differentiate by whoever receives the strongest

         17  signal, and that is what we get, that is the

         18  answering cell.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Had it been

         20  picked up by a tower, the nearest tower in the

         21  Bronx, what information would you have received, and

         22  how would that have made a difference?

         23                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well, we

         24  would have received the information of the tower

         25  location and the direction that the signal had come
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          2  from.  And that was, I believe those sites were

          3  miles away also.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Would they be

          5  much more inland, or are there any in the coastal

          6  areas?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN: I cannot give

          8  you the exact locations of them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         10  Reed, has also joined us, had a question as what

         11  exactly do you mean by a tower?

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  It is an

         13  antennae tower that would stick up, you see them in

         14  a lot of locations.  It is just a structure that

         15  they put antennae on.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So they could

         17  be on any building and not a separate standing

         18  structure.

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, in New

         20  York City a lot of them would be on buildings.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And you will be

         22  able to provide, at a future date, the amount of

         23  towers that exist right now, or the approximate

         24  amount to this Committee?

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We can reach
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          2  out to the carriers and ask them for that

          3  information.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you said

          5  Phase I, which will give you the location of the

          6  tower is almost fully implemented.  Now Phase II

          7  will actually give you the location of the call,

          8  itself.  You said that would not happen until March

          9  2005, what is the reason for that delay?

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That was the

         11  original schedule.  It was scheduled, it was

         12  included in the CAD contract that we are currently

         13  implementing a new CAD system, a Computer Aided

         14  Dispatch system for the Police Department.  The

         15  wireless in 911 technology was originally scheduled

         16  to be implemented with that CAD system.  But because

         17  of the long time frame involved, we begun to

         18  investigate, we are investigating right now the

         19  possibility of putting and interim solution in until

         20  that CAD system is up and running.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Will this

         22  technology exist elsewhere in the country?  The fact

         23  that it is part of a CAD contract does not seem to

         24  be all that relevant.  Do you have the technology in

         25  place now to be able to receive this information,
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          2  should these cell phone companies provide it?

          3                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  Well what it

          4  required for us was mapping software to be resident

          5  on our systems over at MetroTech.  Our 911

          6  integrator is a vendors that works with us to

          7  maintain the 911 system has a mapping software that

          8  he has tested up in, at his facility last week, and

          9  he is installing this week over at Metrotech to see

         10  if it will work with the exiting programs that we

         11  have, and on the computers in Metrotech.  If that

         12  proves to be viable, we are going to work toward

         13  implementing the Phase II as soon as we can.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So the first

         15  step is for your PSAC to have the mapping software?

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And it does not

         18  have that yet?

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Who is paying

         21  for that?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well at this

         23  point the cost for the mapping software, the vendors

         24  had developed mapping software for the Fire

         25  Department for their new CAD system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The CAD stands

          3  for?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Oh, it is

          5  Computer Aided Dispatch, I am sorry, had developed

          6  mapping software for the Fire Department and he is

          7  going to provide it for us free, for this interim

          8  solution.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So the mapping

         10  software is only an interim solution?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  When the new

         12  CAD system goes up, the permanent solution will be

         13  in place.  It is going to have some additional

         14  facilities that are compatible with a new CAD

         15  system.  So we want that solution, when we get the

         16  new CAD.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So are you

         18  saying that this interim CAD system was at no cost

         19  to the City?

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The mapping

         21  software will be provided free.  There might be

         22  additional cost, and there will be additional costs,

         23  which we have not gotten our arms around yet. We

         24  have not identified the additional cost.

         25  We are going to have to hire vendors, we are going
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          2  to have to validate the vendors' solutions, and

          3  actually test them for accuracy.  And there are, of

          4  course, upgraded our existing computers over in

          5  Metrotech.  So, we have not really identified what

          6  those costs are going to be at this time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I am reading to

          8  you from a New York Post article from February 1st.

          9  Commissioner Kelly said that 37 million has been

         10  earmarked to install the state- of- the- art

         11  software at the NYPD 911 system that has the ability

         12  to link up with the cellular signals to the trace

         13  call of the location.

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is the

         15  new CAD system.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That is 37

         17  million, I mean, that is what is in the newspapers.

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And that cost

         21  is being born by the Police Department?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  It is a

         23  capital project that is being funded out of City

         24  capital funds.  But it is more than just the

         25  software, it is all new hardware, all new, you know,
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          2  it is a completely new system.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes.  Has there

          4  been any reimbursement from the State for those

          5  costs, or will there be any reimbursement for the

          6  State?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I cannot

          8  speak to that myself.  OMB or - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I believe there

         10  is a representative from OMB here?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Could you

         13  please step up and identify yourself?  Thank you.

         14                 MR. KAYE:  Jeff Kaye from OMB.  It is

         15  approximately $20 million of the additional fifty

         16  cents that the State increased our surcharge last

         17  year, set aside for localities based on

         18  reimbursement.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Wait, just slow

         20  down a second. It was seventy cents, it went up to

         21  $1.20 to the State and thirty cents to the City.

         22                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So which amount

         24  are you speaking about?

         25                 MR. KAYE:  Of the $1.20,
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          2  approximately $20 million was set aside on last

          3  year's State budget for localities.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Which was

          5  supposed to be divided up per capita.

          6                 MR. KAYE:  Based on per capita, there

          7  are a number of different formulas.  We originally

          8  estimated it would provide the City approximately $5

          9  million, recently it could be as high as $10

         10  million.  We are still waiting from the Department

         11  of State to provide with the award letter, which

         12  should be shortly, if they have not sent it already,

         13  I believe it will be any day now.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you have

         15  requested that money?

         16                 MR. KAYE:  I am sorry?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You have

         18  requested that money already?

         19                 MR. KAYE:  Yes, I believe the City

         20  will be filling out the application necessary to

         21  draw down those funds.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And this is the

         23  $1.20 that we have been sending up since, well, for

         24  this last year?

         25                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The money we

          3  have been sending up since 1991, which was supposed

          4  to be used to enhance our 911 system, have we

          5  received any of that?

          6                 MR. KAYE:  Of the original seventy

          7  cents?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes.

          9                 MR. KAYE:  No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do you have any

         11  idea why that would be?

         12                 MR. KAYE:  The seventy cents, my

         13  understanding, was used to fund, as you had

         14  mentioned before, State Police.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The additional

         16  thirty cents, which we were allowed to use from that

         17  cell phone surcharge - - I should make clear here

         18  that the entire $1.50 is New York City money from

         19  New York City residents.  But the thirty cents that

         20  they allow us to use for our own purposes, what is

         21  that being used for?

         22                 MR. KAYE:  That among the other

         23  revenue set aside for the land line is used to fund

         24  the expenses of the Police Department for the E- 911

         25  system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And is that

          3  being used to enhance that system at all?

          4                 MR. KAYE:  I will defer it to the

          5  Police Department on their expenditures.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  What are

          7  we using the thirty cents for, for the last year

          8  that we have been getting on the surcharge?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCKO:  Let me

         10  identify myself, Ed Allocko, Deputy Commissioner of

         11  Management and Budget, NYPD.

         12                 You know, we have been collecting

         13  land line surcharge money, and we will be collecting

         14  funds from the thirty cents surcharge.  The

         15  combination of those monies are being used to both

         16  enhance 911 system and pay for ongoing operating

         17  costs of the system as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, I have

         19  another question for Jeff Kaye, sorry to make you

         20  guys play musical chairs.

         21                 Jeff, during the testimony we just

         22  heard, or Mr. Kaye, I am sorry, during the testimony

         23  we just heard it was December 1999 when the

         24  Department began to investigate legislative

         25  initiatives regarding the sharing of revenues, which
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          2  had been going on since 1991.

          3                 First of all, why did we wait to

          4  1999?

          5                 And second of all, what was the

          6  problem, why was there no cooperation by the State?

          7                 MR. KAYE:  I believe the City for

          8  possibly even for a few years before that,  have

          9  looked into the seventy cent surcharge and requested

         10  a fair share of that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, I am

         12  confused to why legislation was necessary.  The

         13  original legislation in 1991 says the enhancement of

         14  a statewide 911 system.  So, although, technically,

         15  possibly not requiring them to use it on New York

         16  City, it was obviously an option, which was allowed

         17  under that law, why was there a separate legislation

         18  necessary?

         19                 MR. KAYE:  One, the State budget was

         20  passed each year by the Legislature and signed by

         21  the Governor, in fact, those revenues went to the

         22  State Police.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think you are

         24  corroborating what we feel up here.  They put it

         25  into the State Police budget, they were not supposed
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          2  to put it in the State Police budget.  I do not know

          3  why legislation would have been necessary.  But many

          4  times, you are right, it does require a law, or an

          5  enhancement or an amendment of the law to get the

          6  State to follow, laws, which previously exist.  One

          7  moment.

          8                 I know there are other questions, but

          9  let me get back to the situation on City Island, and

         10  we will use that as a starting point to find out

         11  what technology we have and what improvements we

         12  need.

         13                 When that call came in, it was a 12-

         14  second call, comes into a 911 operator, what is the

         15  protocol for what is to be done with that call?

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The protocol

         17  for that specific call, when it came in, the

         18  information that the operator and the supervisor who

         19  listened to it after the operator, had discerned

         20  from the call that it was in the Long Island Sound.

         21  The operator tried on three occasions to get that

         22  information into the system, and the system would

         23  not accept Long Island Sound as a location.

         24                 We have a procedure that we put in

         25  effect last September where when an occasion like
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          2  that arises that the operator should put in the

          3  location of the Harbor Precinct in the 72 Precinct

          4  in order to get the job into the system, and then

          5  give the information that she or he can discern from

          6  the call to Harbor.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well let me

          8  begin with the fact that the original report said

          9  that this information was garbled and hard to

         10  understand.  What is the procedure when a call comes

         11  in from a cell phone, which is difficult to

         12  understand, which a location may not able to be

         13  gleaned from.  You said that Phase I technology

         14  allows you to get the phone number that it came in

         15  from. Would not a return call to that number be

         16  appropriate, would not a phone call to the address

         17  where that phone number is located, registered to be

         18  appropriate, what is the procedure when there is a

         19  phone call from a wireless phone, when you get a

         20  phone number, but you do not have much information?

         21                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  Well if we

         22  get a phone number with it, and the Phase I

         23  information comes over, then a call back would be

         24  made to that number.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Did we get the
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          2  phone number in this case?

          3                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  No, we did

          4  not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Why was that?

          6                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  That was

          7  because the phone call was bounced off an antennae

          8  in Westchester, and Westchester is not up with Phase

          9  I and they did not pass the Phase I information onto

         10  us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  So, if

         12  you do not get the phone number and it is a garbled

         13  call, is there a procedure to replay that call

         14  through a computer which might be able to clean it

         15  up, what is the procedure?

         16                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  There is a

         17  procedure to replay it, and that procedure was

         18  followed, it was replayed by the supervisor, at

         19  least, two or three times, and he did discern, the

         20  information they discerned was Long Island Sound.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now the memo

         22  that came out, well, how is this information given

         23  to your operators that calls from the ocean or the

         24  water should be sent to a Harbor Unit?

         25                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  Well during
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          2  in- service training, we have in- service training

          3  one session a month where all of the operators are

          4  brought in and they are updated on any recent memos

          5  and also reinforced on some past procedures that

          6  might need reinforcement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How does that

          8  exactly happen? Before work one day, five minutes,

          9  is it a separate day, is it a weekend?

         10                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  It happens

         11  on, I believe, during the first week of the month,

         12  and it is during the first 20 minutes to a half-

         13  hour of the tour that they are working.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Again, we have

         15  information, and I would like to hear from you, that

         16  there are 200 to 300 of these memos every year, and

         17  this was just one of the memos that was introduced

         18  to the workers there.  I see you shaking your head,

         19  so what is your position on that?

         20                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  The

         21  information that I am getting is that there is

         22  approximate somewhere between 30 and 50 memos that

         23  were issued over last year.  And, incidentally, a

         24  copy of each of the memos is given to the individual

         25  during that training.  Each individual receives a
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          2  copy of a memo in addition to having a memo

          3  explained to them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And if they

          5  have questions about the memo, how is that followed

          6  up.

          7                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  They would

          8  ask the training, the individual giving the

          9  training, and I, the questions would be answered.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How many

         11  individuals are involved in the training?

         12                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  We currently

         13  have in our training unit for the communication

         14  section, 12 supervisors and 28 police communication

         15  technicians.  All of them are experienced 911 call

         16  takers and dispatchers.  They perform on all three

         17  platoons, 24 hours a day, five days a week.  All

         18  members are certified by the State of New York in

         19  methods of training, a course given in our Police

         20  Academy, and all have attended a weapons of mass

         21  destruction course offered by the Department of

         22  Justice, in Annaston, Alabama.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  I just

         24  want to jump for a second before I send it over to

         25  my colleagues.  You testified that regarding the
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          2  availability of Phase II, at present few cell phones

          3  contain the GPS technology which allows for Phase II

          4  information to be transmitted.

          5                 Now I am not an expert, but I was

          6  told that there are two different ways to get a

          7  location.  One is triangulation where you have three

          8  separate points, and you locate it that way, and the

          9  other is GPS.  So you said you don't have, the cell

         10  phones don't have the GPS technology, how does that

         11  relate to the triangulation technology?

         12                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  Out of the

         13  cell phone companies that service New York City, I

         14  believe one of them, AT&T uses the triangulation

         15  method.  The rest of them are using the GPS with it

         16  and the handset technology.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Why is that?

         18                 CHIEF DEPUTY GILMARTIN:  Which is

         19  better for New York City in your opinion, and then

         20  why would only one company be using that?  Is there

         21  an FCC regulation regarding that?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I believe

         23  they were given, and I am not expert on this, but I

         24  believe they were given the choice of which way they

         25  should go with it.  The handset technology has some
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          2  other method that it works with.  It is not only the

          3  handset, maybe I will have Claire Maroney a little

          4  bit better understanding of it than I can.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Sure.

          6                 MS. MARONEY:  Yes, good morning.

          7  While I am not a technical expert, when you talk

          8  about location technology in wireless cell phones,

          9  yes, there are two solutions, the network base, and

         10  the handset base.  But hand base set solutions also

         11  use in combination with that some other technology.

         12  Each company can speak to their own technology, the

         13  FCC set the standards and that is what we intend to

         14  measure to, the standards set by the FCC.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Which is better

         16  for New York City?  Again, remembering that we are a

         17  coastal City, two of our counties are islands, and

         18  with, especially remembering the tragedy which

         19  occurred, which one would you recommend that New

         20  York City cell phone providers provide us with?

         21                 MS. MARONEY:  I would recommend that

         22  we do testing to see and measure what that is.  I do

         23  not think we know at this point what it is going to

         24  provide for us, how accurate it is going to be, if

         25  they are going to meet the percentages by the FCC,
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          2  and what that means ultimately.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And would do

          4  this - -

          5                 MS. MARONEY:  Sixty- seven percent of

          6  the time within a certain measurement, how good is

          7  that for that one individual call, I cannot speak to

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, who would

         10  do that testing?

         11                 MR. MARONEY:  We are going to do that

         12  testing hopefully in conjunction with a consultant

         13  that we would get on board.  There are software

         14  programs out there to assist us in measuring the

         15  compliance.  And we need to look at every cell site

         16  as it is being turned up.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  This system,

         18  whichever you wind up using will not be in place

         19  until 2005, apparently.  And you said there is some

         20  mapping software that you were putting onto your

         21  computers, hopefully soon.

         22                 Other than that, what is the cause of

         23  this delay?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The

         25  technology for Phase II, that is on the carrier
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          2  side.  On our side, we have to have the mapping

          3  software resident on our computers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So when you get

          5  this mapping technology, you will be ready to go?

          6  The system will be ready to function.

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  When we get

          8  the mapping software and we prove its viability in

          9  our system, at that point we will be notifying the

         10  carriers that we are ready to receive Phase II.  And

         11  then they have six months to begin to transmitting

         12  Phase II information.

         13                 Well, we expect to hear from some of

         14  the carriers, but we have been advised that some

         15  have this technology in place in Phase II.  So if

         16  you install your mapping system, why would we need

         17  to wait until 2005?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We are not

         19  waiting.  We installation the mapping software, we

         20  are not waiting to 2005, that is our interim

         21  solution.  We will begin receiving Phase II

         22  information, when the carriers start to transmit it

         23  to us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You probably

         25  said this once before, but the difference between
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          2  your interim solution and the final solution is

          3  what?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The final

          5  solution will be embedded in the CAD system and will

          6  provide some other facilities in addition to the

          7  basic longitude, latitude - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Such as?

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN: - -

         10  information that is given,

         11                 I will let Claire Maroney speak to

         12  that.

         13                 MS. MARONEY:  At this point, it

         14  would, at least, provide - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Pull the mic a

         16  little closer to you.

         17                 MS. MARONEY:  It will at least

         18  provide the ability to install the information, be

         19  able to retrieve it.  There are certain software

         20  enhancements that we are also making as part of this

         21  interim solution.  It becomes part of one large CAD

         22  system, rather than separate pieces, having a CAD

         23  system, a map, your telephone is separate pieces,

         24  they would now be integrated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So when is the
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          2  date then for the interim system to be functional?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We do not

          4  have a date yet. Our 911 integrator, as I had

          5  explained before, the individual who maintains our

          6  911 system is currently testing that mapping

          7  software on our computer to computers over at

          8  Metrotech.  Depending on how that test works out, we

          9  will start the process of doing whatever else is

         10  necessary for us to move to Phase II.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well how long

         12  will the testing take?  They must have given you a

         13  synopsis of what they are going to do and how long

         14  it is going to take.

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The

         16  information that the integrator provided me with is

         17  that he should know by the end of this week whether

         18  it is viable.  But then there are still other things

         19  that we have to do to integrate that with the

         20  system, - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:   Which are

         22  what?

         23                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN: - -  and it

         24  could take up to a couple of months, two to three

         25  months.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  For you to get

          3  your system ready to go.  Then how long would it

          4  take to integrate with the cell phone companies?

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Once we are

          6  ready to receive, as soon as the cell phone

          7  companies start sending signals, we will be in

          8  business.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do you have the

         10  proper funding to get this going?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  At this

         12  point we have not identified all of the costs.  We

         13  are trying to identify those costs now.  We have to

         14  hire a consultant, who has to validate the signals

         15  that are sent from the cell carriers to ensure that

         16  we are getting accurate information.  We have to

         17  upgraded our computer over a Metrotech, and then

         18  there is additional software modifications to be

         19  made, and then we work with the carriers to test

         20  their solutions and make sure they function in our

         21  environment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So why hasn't

         23  this, why wasn't this vendor retained earlier to

         24  start this process of putting this mapping system

         25  in?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We only got

          3  finished implementing Phase I at the end of December

          4  of 2002.  We immediately started reaching out for

          5  vendors to bring them in and talk about Phase II.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, I have

          7  some more questions, but I will go first to my

          8  colleague, Phil Reed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you very

         10  much Mr. Chair. And a lot of my questions are really

         11  directed in the area that you were going, which is

         12  the costs, because I think like most New Yorkers, a

         13  little confused.  So I think that some of the

         14  questions are going to be directed at the second

         15  gentleman from OMB.  So perhaps if you could come

         16  up.

         17                 First, let me say that I think that

         18  having served on this Committee now for six, or

         19  almost six years, I am aware of the stress that is

         20  inherent in the job of a 911 operator, and I think

         21  overall the system works successfully.  I think

         22  there have been changes, but obviously, when there

         23  are tragedies, the stress and the strain of New

         24  Yorkers to try to understand what our safety net is,

         25  is obvious.  And so I think the line of questioning
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          2  is not directed personally, but it is to try to

          3  improve the situation.  We cannot go back in time,

          4  but we certainly want to make it less possible for

          5  those circumstances to happen, whether it is

          6  Westchester is involved, and do not understand, you

          7  know all the things that add up to tragedy.  I think

          8  that is what we are trying to accomplish here.

          9                 And certainly, this Administration, I

         10  think, has improved.  I remember one of the problems

         11  in the hearings that we had in the past was that you

         12  also had the highest rate of absenteeism and sick

         13  days just because of the amount of stress that

         14  people were being asked to do voluntary overtime

         15  constantly, and so that was a problem.  We will not

         16  get into those details, I hope we do during the

         17  budget hearing, Mr. Chair, but I remember that that

         18  was a significant problem, also with the training of

         19  people.

         20                 But I am confused, and I must admit I

         21  have not followed this whole issue of funding and

         22  how the State has had this money, but they did not

         23  spend it, or did not give it to us to spend.  Then

         24  we put into place a local surcharge, but we have not

         25  spent that, and OMB is saying there is money in the
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          2  capital budget, and some of that money has been

          3  spent.  And I want to be a little bit more specific,

          4  I would like you to be a little more specific about

          5  how the money has been spent on what is what I am

          6  not sure I understand.  And there must be some

          7  estimate of what the mapping and the computer costs

          8  are going to be.

          9                 I understand that you said that we

         10  were going to hire a consultant, Chief Gilmartin,

         11  but there has got to be some estimate out here, we

         12  do not put, well, at least on our side, we do not

         13  put money in the capital budget without some

         14  estimate of what the cost is going to be.  So, I am

         15  trying to, perhaps get a little more information,

         16  maybe from OMB, as to exactly, I know you have a

         17  budget line in there for this, and what is that

         18  currently?

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well I will

         20  just speak to the issue of the consultant who we

         21  have to hire for this.  That would not be part of

         22  capital funding, I do not believe.  I think we would

         23  probably have to get OTPS funding for that, expense

         24  funding. And the monies that are in the new CAD

         25  system, because it is a capital project, they cover
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          2  everything that is involved in that capital project.

          3    But if we go outside and get this mapping software

          4  as an interim solution, the cost of the consultant

          5  to come in and do the validation are probably going

          6  to come out of expense funds.  But, I will let OMB

          7  speak to that issue.

          8                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Councilman, to address

          9  your question about what is in the Capital Budget,

         10  presently the only monies left in the Capital Budget

         11  are for the CAD system.  There are no funds

         12  currently allocated for the interim solution, as

         13  Chief Gilmartin explained.  But we have not

         14  identified those costs yet, and we expect that once

         15  they are identified, we will be discussing the

         16  requirements with OMB, and we would hope to secure

         17  those funds as we move forward.

         18                 In terms of what - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED;  You said that

         20  the only money in the budget is for the CAD system,

         21  how much is in the budget for that?

         22                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Thirty- four million

         23  dollars is in the Capital Budget for the CAD system.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  In this fiscal

         25  year, in Fiscal 2003?  Is that where we are, I am
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          2  confused today, yes.

          3                 MR. ALLOCKO:  I believe it was last

          4  fiscal year, because the contract was registered

          5  then.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Well that

          7  budget will carry over.  But so, is there any

          8  anticipation in the preliminary budget that we added

          9  some money in there?  You know, there was a lot of

         10  newspaper articles about the reduction in the

         11  capital budget, so is there a plan for more money

         12  for that now?

         13                 MR. ALLOCKO:  The only costs that are

         14  currently funded in the Capital Budget are for the

         15  new Computer Aided Dispatch system, and we have not

         16  identified additional costs related to Enhanced 911

         17  for cell call technology.  And when we do, we will

         18  make that request to OMB, and we anticipate we will

         19  get those needs funded.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Is your mic on?

         21    This one just sounds so loud to me.  Yes.

         22                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Let me

         24  understand this.  So there is now a surcharge on us

         25  locally that we passed back in October, right is
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          2  that thirty- five cents?

          3                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Thirty cents wireless.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thirty cents on

          5  what?

          6                 MR. ALLOCKO:  The thirty cents is the

          7  wireless surcharge that applies exclusively to the

          8  City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Every month?

         10                 MR. ALLOCKO:  That is correct.  That

         11  was passed, that was put into effect in October of

         12  2002.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.  And so

         14  the carriers then they pass that directly onto the

         15  City?

         16                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Well it is not

         17  directly, they collect it, and then we have to apply

         18  for the State to receive those funds, you know, back

         19  through the State.  I am sorry, the portion of the

         20  additional fifty cents that the State is collecting,

         21  that we apply through the State to receive those

         22  monies back.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  A portion of

         24  the additional $1.50, I really am, I really just do

         25  not get all of this, but I am trying to understand

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  this.  There was a, they charged how much money

          3  originally?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, let me

          5  just jump in for a second, it was seventy cents

          6  before last year, and then they made it $1.50, fifty

          7  of the additional money goes to the state, thirty

          8  comes back to us.  So it is $1.20 now of New York

          9  City money that they take to Albany and use for

         10  State troopers an additional thirty cents that they

         11  are allowing us to use for our purposes, am I

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. KAYE: There is a portion of that

         14  $1.20 that is set aside for localities.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  All right, I am

         16  sorry to interrupt, but I was just given some

         17  testimony from Randi Daniels, which refers to your

         18  point.  Of course, as I said before, they did not

         19  come down to explain to the City what they have been

         20  doing with our money.  There testimony says that

         21  this Board, which they have established, which will

         22  determine how much we get, has decided that New York

         23  City's allocation includes $9,622,277 for expenses

         24  incurred from April 1st, as well as an additional

         25  $780,000 for expenses from January 1st, 1991.  So
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          2  those are numbers I do not know if you had, you did

          3  not testify to them, but apparently they have come

          4  up with some numbers of our money, which we get

          5  back, let's be clear about that.

          6                 The rest of it is a page and a half

          7  of sound bites, which does not answer any of the

          8  questions and don't explain anything.  And I will

          9  read to you their closing paragraph:

         10                  "The Governor and I are currently

         11  looking at how the law can be improved to expedite

         12  this process.  Governor Pataki in committed to

         13  ensuring public safety and no one has done more than

         14  he to address public security issues.  It is a

         15  complicated technical issue, more complicated than I

         16  believe most people realize, but we will solve this

         17  problems.  All New Yorkers deserve an updated,

         18  technologically, current wireless 911 system, and

         19  they will have it."  That apparently suffices as an

         20  explanation from the Governor's Office.

         21                 So, back to you, Mr. Reed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And I certainly

         23  would not ever think that you, the Chair, or myself

         24  are trying to trash the Governor, we are just trying

         25  to get to understand what is happening here.
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          2                 I guess what I do not understand is

          3  two pieces of this.  There is thirty cents that

          4  supposedly comes directly to us, and then there is a

          5  portion of the fifty cents, right?

          6                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But we do not

          8  know what portion of the fifty cents?

          9                 MR. KAYE:  I think that relates to -

         10   -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  That relates to

         12  this?

         13                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.  And then

         15  I am told that there is a dollar every month on our

         16  land line.

         17                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.

         18                 MR. ALLOCKO:  That is right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But all that,

         20  and I have Sprint, so, Sprint charges me this money,

         21  right?

         22                 MR. ALLOCKO:  That is correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And then they

         24  send it all to the State.

         25                 MR. KAYE:  I believe, I am not
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          2  familiar with the process of it.

          3                 MR. ALLOCKO:  I think the portion,

          4  the fifty cents that is collected in addition to the

          5  seventy is sent to the State. And then the City has

          6  to apply for our portion of that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, that is

          8  part of my question.  If we do not know how much

          9  there is, how do we know what to apply for?

         10                 MR. KAYE:  Out of the $1.20, the

         11  State set aside in last fiscal year's budget $20

         12  million, and only $20 million for localities.  This

         13  was the first time they - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  All the

         15  localities in the State of New York.

         16                 MR. KAYE:  All the localities in the

         17  State of New York.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Twenty million

         19  dollars.

         20                 MR. KAYE:  Twenty million dollars.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Out of a pool

         22  of what?

         23                 MR. KAYE:  I am not familiar with how

         24  much money they have gotten our of the $1.20.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  All right.  If
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          2  there is only $20 million, so I would imagine that

          3  with all the cell phones in this City, yet, alone in

          4  this State, that there is probably more, a whole lot

          5  more than $20 million.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council member,

          7  our staff estimates it is more than $40 billion

          8  (sic), which would leave $20 million unaccounted

          9  for.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Forty billion?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Forty million.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Forty million.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  In one year, in

         14  one year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  In one year,

         16  okay.

         17                 So they allocated $20 million to the

         18  whole state, localities all across the State.

         19                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.  When you

         21  say to me then, fist of all, so, I am not sure, what

         22  is it that we have to apply for?

         23                 MR. KAYE:  The Department of State,

         24  as noticed in the Chair's letter that he received

         25  from the Secretary of State, set aside an allocation
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          2  based on, I believe, it is per capita and expenses.

          3  For which at this point the City and the Police

          4  Department are working to send in the application to

          5  actually draw down those funds that had been

          6  allotted from the $20 million.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, I am

          8  really trying not to beat this to death, but I am

          9  trying to understand it.  So that is, so the thirty

         10  cents, that is direct.  Does that come directly to

         11  us, or does that go directly to the State too, and

         12  we still, and how do we get to thirty cents?

         13                 MR. ALLOCKO:  The carrier is

         14  collected, and the money goes to the Department of

         15  Finance.  So it comes directly to the City after

         16  collected by the carriers, it does not go to the

         17  State.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And is that in

         19  a dedicated fund for this new system that we need?

         20  You say it goes to the Department of Finances for

         21  regular people, it means it just goes into the City

         22  coffer.

         23                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Right, it goes into the

         24  General Fund.

         25                 MR. KAYE:  And that is used to fund
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          2  the expenses of the Police Department for the

          3  purposes of the E- 911 system.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And so when you

          5  say that there is money in the Capital Budget, or we

          6  are going to be looking also to see what new money,

          7  that is our own capital budget.  That is not this

          8  money that is set aside, this is what the City made

          9  decide to spend.  Right?

         10                 MR. KAYE:  That is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And so, back to

         12  the last question, and I hope this is the final

         13  part.  We have applied for this money to the State.

         14  When did we do that?

         15                 MR. KAYE:  We are in the process of

         16  applying for roughly $10 million that the State has

         17  said they allotted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Even though

         19  this thing has been in place for years, we are just

         20  now applying?

         21                 MR. KAYE:  This set aside of

         22  localities has just been in place since last State

         23  fiscal year.  So this is the first time that it has

         24  been made available to the City to apply.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And we are
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          2  applying for $10 million of that?

          3                 MR. KAYE:  I believe that is the

          4  approximate allotment of the $20 million, as noted

          5  in the testimony by the Secretary of the State.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Is there a

          7  locality here in the country, either a state or a

          8  city that has this system up and running that has

          9  been evaluated, this Phase I and Phase II system,

         10  anywhere?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Currently, I

         12  think there may be several, specifically I know in

         13  the City of Houston.  The City of Houston has

         14  instituted a Phase II Wireless System.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I am told by

         16  our staff that in Syracuse, in Onondaga County, this

         17  system is up and running.  Are you aware of that?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I am not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, but so,

         20  it Houston, have you had a chance to evaluate or

         21  look at those evaluations and determine the

         22  usefulness of all of this system?

         23                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We, you

         24  know, we have been to Houston, I was down to Houston

         25  several months ago for a conference, and they find
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          2  it to be an extremely useful tool, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Next month we

          4  are starting our hearings on the Preliminary Budget.

          5    I would ask of the Chair, that we look at this.

          6  But can we expect from the Police Department to have

          7  a better idea of what money is actually going to

          8  allocated to put this system in place, and what the

          9  real time frame is going to be?

         10                 You said that you are going to have

         11  to look at the estimates of this, but could we

         12  expect to have those numbers by then?

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I would

         14  expect that by that time I will have a good idea on

         15  what the interim solution is, if it is going to

         16  work, and the costs that are going to be associated

         17  with it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Reed, for those questions.  And yes, we will,

         22  hopefully, have that information from you next

         23  month, in addition, a breakdown of the thirty cents

         24  that we are receiving and what that money is being

         25  used for, specifically with regard to E- 911.  Thank
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          2  you Council member.

          3                 Council Member Monserrate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

          5  you, Mr. Chair. Let me just, first, before I even

          6  get into the line of questioning with the Police

          7  Department say that I think it is outrageous that

          8  the State is not here today.  I think it is clearly

          9  outrageous what is going on, all the money we send

         10  up there, the lack of response, and it goes to a

         11  bigger issue, I believe, politically how Albany has

         12  consistently negated the appropriate resources for

         13  this City as the economic driving of this State.

         14  And I commend you for your talk about cessation, I

         15  think it is an important debate, and I look forward

         16  to engaging in that debate.

         17                 And specifically for the Police

         18  Department I have a question regarding maybe OMB

         19  can, I am not really clear about this dollar land

         20  line charge.  What does that generate in revenue

         21  last year?  That is my first question to that.

         22                 And second, how much of that one

         23  dollar per land line does the City of New York get

         24  specifically in our fund, whether it goes to a

         25  General Fund or not?
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          2                 MR. ALLOCKO:  We get, the City gets

          3  all of the one dollar that is charged on the land

          4  lines.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So all

          6  the land lines in the City of New York, that dollar

          7  goes right back to the City.

          8                 MR. ALLOCKO:  That is correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay,

         10  what did that generate last year?

         11                 MR. ALLOCKO:  In Fiscal Year 2002

         12  that generated $21.3 million.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Twenty-

         14  one point three million.  Can you tell me how much

         15  of that money was used for the 911 system, either

         16  Capital funding or any other funding, how much of

         17  that $21.3 million generated from that surcharge?

         18                 MR. KAYE:  If I may, the $21 million

         19  that they are referring to, was not the full one

         20  dollar, because the one dollar was not in place

         21  until this current fiscal year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  What was

         23  it last year?

         24                 MR. KAYE:  It was thirty- five cents.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So the
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          2  thirty- five cents generated the $21.3?

          3                 MR. KAYE:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So what

          5  are you forecasting, that the one dollar fully will

          6  generate for 2003?

          7                 MR. KAYE:  The one dollar fully in

          8  our current financial plan is approximately 51 to 52

          9  million dollars.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Fifty-

         11  two, okay.  So let's go back to last year, that

         12  $21.3 million, how was it used?

         13                 MR. KAYE:  That is yours, that is the

         14  Police Department's expenditures.

         15                 MR. ALLOCKO:  The cost of operating

         16  in the 911 system including staffing and lease costs

         17  and ongoing maintenance and so forth, per year, is

         18  $77.6 million.  While OMB decides exactly how that

         19  money is charged, how that tax revenue brought in

         20  based on the thirty- five cents, and then increased

         21  to the dollar land line surcharge, is actually

         22  allocated, a good portion of that goes towards

         23  funding those ongoing operating expenses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So, it is

         25  used for operating.   Out of this, you said 76.6
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          2  million is approximately the budget for the 911

          3  system staff, salaries.

          4                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Seventy- seven point

          5  six.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Seventy-

          7  seven, so what is the percentage that goes to

          8  salaries?

          9                 MR. ALLOCKO:  The percent of our

         10  operating costs that are salaries, or the percentage

         11  of the surcharge that is charged?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  No,

         13  operating.

         14                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Oh, okay.  Well it is

         15  $45 million our of 77.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Forty-

         17  five million, so more than, much more than half.

         18                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Yes, and then there is

         19  another 12 million, a fringe benefits and pension

         20  costs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         22  That begs a few questions because, was the original

         23  intent, and I was not here to legislate it, but was

         24  the original intent of that surcharge to be used for

         25  operating, for salaries, isn't that part of the
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          2  Police Department's budget?  I am assuming that this

          3  surcharge should have been used to modernize, you

          4  know, the 911 system.

          5                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Right.  Well since the

          6  City began collecting the surcharge in 1992, $182.5

          7  million has been collected.  And $120 million has

          8  gone through the Capital Budget, surcharge monies

          9  funded in the Capital Budget primarily for the PSAC

         10  I Project at Metrotech.  So that was the build out,

         11  the technology, ongoing maintenance, systems

         12  integrated costs and so forth.  Full costs of

         13  technology and equipment for the Metrotech

         14  operation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.

         16  So that is PSAC I, which is completed, right?

         17                 MR. ALLOCKO:  It is completed, but

         18  there are still ongoing costs, maintenance and

         19  systems integrated contract costs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.

         21  There is supposed to be a PSAC II; isn't there?  We

         22  had an early hearing this year about that.

         23                 MR. ALLOCKO:  PSAC II is not

         24  currently funded.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  It is not
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          2  currently funded.

          3                 MR. ALLOCKO:  It was eliminated in

          4  the last round of Capital Budget cuts.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Let me

          6  ask then, I am going to veer off, I am still very

          7  intrigued by all of this money that is supposed to

          8  be going to this 911 system.  But let me just veer

          9  off, in order to modernize, you are saying that PSAC

         10  II is not on the  --

         11                 MR. ALLOCKO:  PSAC II is not

         12  currently funded.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Not

         14  currently funded. So can we modernize the system

         15  right now, the 911 system, like we have been talking

         16  about, upgrading the computers, upgrading the

         17  programs, the mapping systems?  I am assuming, I

         18  mean, I do not want to assume, can we do that in the

         19  current facility at Metrotech, or do we need the

         20  second PSAC facility?  Because there was also the

         21  concerns of if we were the victim of another

         22  terrorist attack, would PSAC I be capable of

         23  continuing an effective 911 system?

         24                 In relation to that, and my concern

         25  that you are saying that the next PSAC is not
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          2  budgeted, how does that relate to the modernization

          3  of this 911 system?

          4                 MR. ALLOCKO:  Well if the Computer

          5  Aided Dispatch System will be developed and

          6  implemented at Metrotech.  So the system can be

          7  modernized in its current location.  You know, that

          8  obviously, does not answer, you know address the

          9  other concerns about you know having a dual hot site

         10  and you know anticipating a disaster or terrorist

         11  attack, and having a backup facility, fully

         12  functioned backup facility capable of operating in

         13  the event that the facility at Metrotech is

         14  inoperable.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.

         16  Clearly, Mr. Chair, I bring this up because from an

         17  earlier hearing this was discussed, and clearly now

         18  that we are, the entire nation is under Orange

         19  Alert, I think that it is a very timely issue to re-

         20  discuss specifically how the PSAC system and some of

         21  the funding might be able to come from these taxes

         22  or surcharges, that specifically should be earmarked

         23  for 911 improvement and modernization.

         24                 Did you want to add something to

         25  that?
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          2                 MR. KAYE: If I may

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Yes,

          4  please.

          5                 MR. KAYE:  The local law establishing

          6  both surcharges required that the funds be used to

          7  pay for the costs associated with the design and

          8  construction operation, maintenance, and

          9  administration of the Public Safety Communication

         10  Networks, and they are being used to fund those

         11  costs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

         13  Administration, that would include salaries?

         14                 MR. KAYE:  That includes operation

         15  and maintenance, that is correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I guess

         17  that we should review that legislation, Mr. Chair,

         18  and maybe look at making some improvements to it.  I

         19  do not think that salaries of the operators should

         20  have been used from that, but we will take a look at

         21  that.

         22                 I have another question, getting back

         23  to the Police Department in regarding the call

         24  volume of 911.  In your testimony it says, in 2002

         25  over 12 million calls were made compared to 11.5 in
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          2  2000.  So that is a half of a million more calls in

          3  2002.  Is that correct?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

          5  correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And not

          7  that it is in your testimony, but would you say that

          8  this is a continual trend, or is this just an

          9  aberration, or has it been continually increasing,

         10  let's say from 1998, 1996, 1998, 2000, 2002?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, it has

         12  continued to increase, although, the rate of

         13  increase has slowed over the last two years.  Over

         14  the last two years, we were in the range two to four

         15  percent increases for the last two calendar years.

         16  Where prior to that, it was generally going up at

         17  the rate of about 10 percent a year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And you

         19  expect that to continue, to increase at this two to

         20  four percent?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well you

         22  know it is difficult to say absolutely, but you

         23  know, we would anticipate that there could be

         24  another increase this year, sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay, I
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          2  just want to go back to the tragic incident in the

          3  Long Island Sound.  The original call came in, and

          4  it was gargled, but it was identified that it was

          5  coming from the Long Sound.  Is that what you

          6  testified to?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

          8  correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And how

         10  big is this Long Island Sound, how big is it, you

         11  know, in miles or territory?

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  It is 110

         13  miles long I believe, and it is quite large.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.

         15  But it was identified, I am assuming the Long Island

         16  Sound in the New York City area, right, it was not

         17  out in Long Island, right?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We would

         19  assume that a call coming to us from a wireless

         20  phone would have been somewhere in the vicinity of

         21  New York City.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.

         23  And how big is that vicinity?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I cannot

         25  give you an answer to that.  But it is still a
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          2  significant body of water.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay, Mr.

          4  Chair, I think that I am done.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

          6  Council member. Let me thank you for bringing up

          7  PSAC II, it was something we just found out about

          8  recently, and I do not believe it is something that

          9  the Council will let happen, the funding for PSAC II

         10  to disappear. I know that I as Public Safety Chair,

         11  I will fight against it, and hopefully, the rest of

         12  the Council will agree that that is something that

         13  is necessary, that we need a backup, especially when

         14  we sit in the cross airs of the terrorists.  And

         15  that will be something that we will be bringing up

         16  in more detail at the budget hearing next month, but

         17  thank you for mentioning that.

         18                 Council Member Reed, you have a

         19  further question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Yes, thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair for recognizing me again.  I hope this is

         22  a short line.  Because something that Council Member

         23  Monserrate just said, and I have tried to understand

         24  this.  You are in an emergency situation and so you,

         25  on your cell phone dial 911.  You just push 911,
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          2  there is no area code or anything like that, so,

          3  you, for instance - - is that right?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

          5  correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And you said

          7  that this was first picked in Westchester by a tower

          8  in Westchester, and then relayed back to the 911

          9  operator in New York.

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

         11  correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So, because I

         13  really do not understand this, how does Westchester

         14  know to relay it to the 911 operator in New York?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The antennae

         16  that picked up the signal, one- third of that

         17  antennae is oriented toward New York City.  So, any

         18  signal picked up within that one- third of the

         19  antennae is automatically transferred to New York

         20  City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Because of the

         22  direction of that, that is in the New York City

         23  vicinity.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, Sir,

         25  yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But if I were

          3  someplace else, and had my phone, and was just

          4  driving Upstate New York, and I dialed 911, and it

          5  would be picked by the nearest tower someplace,

          6  hopefully, right?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So how would,

          9  is there some way that it does, that it knows.  I

         10  mean does it know, I guess the system trying to

         11  identify the number would then assume, but you

         12  cannot even assume that just because my number is a

         13  local number to New York, that that is where I am.

         14                 I guess my question is - -

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I am sorry,

         16  I do not understand your question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: - -  in that

         18  particular case, it went back to the New York

         19  operator.

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But if they had

         22  been someplace else on the sound, this would have

         23  been picked up, and would there have been any

         24  ability to direct something, unless we had this

         25  system in place?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well if it

          3  was picked up, you know again, by, if it was picked

          4  up in Nassau County, that would mean that the cell

          5  phone that was making the call would have had to

          6  have been in Nassau County.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Yes.

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Or in the

          9  vicinity, the direction of the antennae that is in

         10  Westchester is what made the signal, made it,

         11  determined that the signal came from New York City.

         12  That same process would be followed wherever you

         13  are, depending on whether the direction it is coming

         14  from, that is where the signal would be.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, and so to

         16  try to track this call back, this is my last

         17  question, so, how long does it take the operator or

         18  did it take the operator to track this back to

         19  Westchester and assume where, this direction of the

         20  antennae was such that it was in the Sound?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  The operator

         22  did not know at that time, we got that information

         23  on subsequent days, not that time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So it is not

         25  within 10 minutes or something like that.
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  No, Sir, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Which is what

          4  we want the system to be able to do, in other words.

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  With the

          6  location technology, it will give you the location

          7  within 150 meters or something, or 300 meters.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         11  Council member.  For scheduling purposes the Police

         12  will be finished in a few minutes, and then we will

         13  take a five minute break and continue with the

         14  Comptroller's Office, the Sprint, the Union

         15  representing 911 operators, the Skyscrapers

         16  Campaign, and 100 Blacks in Law Enforcement, but we

         17  still have a few more minutes with the Police

         18  Department and then we will take a five minute

         19  break.

         20                 Gentlemen, you stated that much of

         21  your time line from implementation of Phase II

         22  hinges on whether or not your systems integrator

         23  decided that the software is compatible with the

         24  NYPD's system.  What if it is not compatible?

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well, we
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          2  have to look for another solution.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how long

          4  would that take?

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I cannot

          6  give you that information, I do not have it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And you said

          8  you might know whether it is compatible in a week or

          9  two.

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I am hoping

         11  to know this week, but I am, again, it depends on

         12  the tests that the integrator is performing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, okay, and

         14  you will let us know, when you find that information

         15  out?

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  What I will

         19  do, I will look to get a time line as to when we can

         20  expect up and functional, and I will get that to

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I have some

         23  questions given to me, and I do not mind that

         24  happening, because many times we get questions for

         25  the Police Department after the Police Department
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          2  leaves, I do not mind asking them now, and they are

          3  from the Union. They wanted to know have you

          4  increased staffing of the operators and dispatchers

          5  as the level of calls has increased?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Do you want

          7  to speak to that.

          8                 MR. ALLOCKO:  In the opening

          9  statement, I think it was mentioned that the current

         10  allotment of staffing for 911 call takers has

         11  remained constant for the last two years.  The last

         12  increase was in calendar year 2000, when we

         13  increased the authorized staffing from 913 to 1,097.

         14    We roughly have maintained that every since then,

         15  that 1,097 number.

         16                 If you look at the statistics on our

         17  call taking over the last two years, we show some

         18  dramatic productivity increases, dramatic increases

         19  in, well, substantial increases in call taker

         20  productivity and in call processing time.

         21                 For example, you know, one of the

         22  ways that we handle the increased volume with the

         23  same number of personnel is, for example, we have

         24  decreased the average 911 call processing time over

         25  the last two years from 130 seconds down to 109
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          2  seconds.  That is a fairly substantial percentage,

          3  and that kind of reflects our ability to answer the

          4  calls with the same level of staffing.

          5                 And again, the increases over the

          6  last two years has not been as substantial as the

          7  years prior to that, as far as overall 911 volume.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Another

         10  indicator of that is that over the last couple of

         11  years our overtime, which was mentioned before has

         12  substantially decreased.  In 2000, the overtime was

         13  $2.7 million, and in 2002 the overtime was $560,000.

         14  So we had a substantial decrease in overtime, which

         15  had proven to be a dissatisfier (sic) for the

         16  workers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, I am not

         18  taking a position on whether that is a enough or

         19  not.  I should also point out that you have been

         20  able to maintain current staffing levels despite

         21  massive cuts to the Police Department, which I am

         22  fighting against and many others are fighting

         23  against.  But you have not, as far as I know made

         24  any cuts in the operators or the dispatchers. Is

         25  that correct?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  That is

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And then we

          5  commend that.

          6                 Another question they had asked, I

          7  believe you said that training occurs before the

          8  shift starts in the morning for approximately 15

          9  minutes.  They wanted to know, what is conducted

         10  during that 15 minutes and how many directives are

         11  covered in that time period?

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Actually, it

         13  takes place during their first break.  They are

         14  given breaks during the day. The first break of the

         15  month for them, the training is conducted.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how long is

         17  that break?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  And it is

         19  not a fixed, the break is normally 20 minutes, but

         20  if there is more time required for the training,

         21  then that training will be given.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how many

         23  directives would be covered in the average break,

         24  the average training procedure?

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Probably
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          2  about four or five a month as an average.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And do you

          4  believe that is the proper amount of time for that

          5  many directives?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  It appears

          7  to have been workable.  What we are looking at is

          8  increasing and adding a second training period per

          9  month.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you are

         11  looking at increasing the training.

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, Sir.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And do you have

         14  any idea when that decision will be made?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Well, we

         16  have looked at it and we feel that it is doable.  We

         17  are going to start implementing in the near term.

         18  Did we set a date yet?  March or April we are

         19  looking to implement that second training session.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  One moment.

         21  The Computer Aided Dispatch system, is that

         22  operating presently?

         23                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  We currently

         24  have a system in place, it is a Computer Aided

         25  Dispatch system, the acronym for it is Sprint.  And
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          2  that was installed in 1968.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You said 1968?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Yes, 1968,

          5  and it is functional and it is serving our needs

          6  now, but we do need this CAD system that is

          7  currently being developed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  When was that

          9  CAD system supposed to be in place?

         10  DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  I believe that a vendor was

         11  hired in the mid- 1990s, I was not in my current

         12  position at that time, but I believe a vendor was

         13  engaged in the mid- 1990s, but that vendors' efforts

         14  failed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And this is the

         16  second time, this is the first time since then that

         17  we have attempted to get the updated CAD system?

         18  DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  Again, I was not in my

         19  current position when all of these, this took place,

         20  but I believe when the vendors' efforts eventually

         21  failed, then they went out and went out to RFP again

         22  to get another vendor in to implement the system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Last question,

         24  is there anything that this Council can do to assist

         25  you in speeding up this process of implementing
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          2  Phase II technology either in its temporary or

          3  permanent form?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GILMARTIN:  At this

          5  point, we are doing everything we can do, as quickly

          6  as we can do it.  And if an occasion arises where I

          7  feel we can do something faster with additional

          8  help, I will certainly look to you for assistance.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And we do stand

         10  ready to assist in any way possible to get this

         11  implemented, because it is our priority, as you can

         12  see by this hearing, and we are concerned about the

         13  delays, which have occurred.  But we are outraged,

         14  again, by the fact that the State is not here, you

         15  are, and thank you.

         16                 The cell phone that made the call

         17  from the Long Island Sound had a surcharge on it

         18  payable to the State for enhancing our 911 system,

         19  and they have not shown up here to explain that.

         20                 So thank you, gentlemen, for coming

         21  down and giving us your expertise.  We will be

         22  working with you in the future. Thank you for your

         23  time.

         24                 Again, we will take a five- minute

         25  break now, and come back with the Comptroller's

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Office.

          3                 (Recess taken.)

          4                 We will hear testimony from the New

          5  York State Comptroller's Office regarding what has

          6  happened to the money we have sent to Albany.  And

          7  we will hear from Tom Sanzillo, the First Deputy

          8  Comptroller.  Thank you, Mr. Sanzillo for coming

          9  down today.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Please begin

         13  with your prepared statement.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         15  Okay.  My name is Thomas Sanzillo.  I am First

         16  Deputy Comptroller for New York State Comptroller's

         17  Office.  I am here today to present the testimony of

         18  New York State Comptroller Alan Hevesi.

         19                 I would like to thank the members of

         20  the City Council for seeking my office's input on

         21  this important issue, and for holding this timely

         22  hearing to help improve the safety and security of

         23  New Yorkers.

         24                 New York is using warless phones

         25  should have the security of knowing that in case of
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          2  emergency, their calls will be handled as quickly

          3  and effectively as possible, and that they could be

          4  located by authorities, even if they are unable to

          5  describe their exact location, or their wireless

          6  service is interrupted during a call.

          7                 In 1993, an 18- year- old, Jennifer

          8  Koon, the daughter of State Assemblyman David Koon

          9  tragically lost her life at the hands of an

         10  attacker.  During her assault Jennifer dialed 911

         11  from her cell phone, but the technology didn't exist

         12  to help the call center locate her and save her

         13  life.  Sadly, earlier this year, New Yorkers

         14  experienced the loss of four Long Island teenagers,

         15  a tragedy that showed us that New York desperately

         16  need stool make this technology available in New

         17  York State.

         18                 Today, not only does the technology

         19  exist, but the federal government has mandated the

         20  implementation of Enhanced 911 Wireless Services in

         21  all States.  In a report issued last March, our

         22  Office found that while nearly half of all States

         23  had achieved full or at least partial implementation

         24  of Enhanced 911 Wireless Service, New York State had

         25  made no progress in developing an enhanced cellular
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          2  911 system capable of providing an emergency

          3  dispatcher with both the cellular caller's callback

          4  number, and his or her approximate location.  This

          5  is true despite the existence of a then seventy cent

          6  per month surcharge for emergency services.

          7                 Last year, legislation was passed to

          8  increase the cellular surcharge by fifty cents,

          9  raising the fee to $1.20 per month.  Even with the

         10  increased fee there is still no State plan for

         11  upgrading the system and enhancing New Yorkers'

         12  safety.

         13                 Currently all net proceeds from the

         14  cellular surcharge are received and used for other

         15  purposes by the New York State Police, even in those

         16  counties and in New York City where wireless 911

         17  calls are handled by local authorities.  Two- thirds

         18  of New Yorkers live in places where warless 911

         19  calls are handled locally.

         20                 Last year, under the direction of

         21  State Comptroller Carl McCall, the Office of the

         22  State Comptroller completed two reports that

         23  addressed problems with 911 emergency services, both

         24  traditional and warless, and made a number of

         25  significant recommendations for improvements, for
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          2  improvements that should be made by the State.

          3                 One review detailed the financial

          4  burden counties face as they work other enhance

          5  traditional 911 service, including the challenges of

          6  managing accounting for revenue from a surcharge on

          7  all customers' monthly bills.

          8                 The second audit, which I think is

          9  the one that is more relevant here, raised important

         10  questions about administration of the seventy cents,

         11  now $1.20, cellular surcharge collected from warless

         12  customers every month and used by the New York State

         13  Police.

         14                 In response to the audit, Division of

         15  State Police officials stated that they planned to

         16  improve controls over the collection and accounting

         17  of surcharge revenues, to clarify the use of

         18  surcharge revenues, and to issue annual reports to

         19  the Legislature on the status of 911 services across

         20  the State.  Police officials said they did not

         21  believe the legislation required them to use the

         22  cellular surcharge to enhance 911 services.  The

         23  Office of the State Comptroller disagreed.

         24                 Subsequent to our report, legislation

         25  created the New York State 911 Board, within the
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          2  Department of State, to help facilitate the State's

          3  implementation of an Enhanced 911 system. The

          4  Legislation created a framework under which this

          5  Board would operate.

          6                 Enhanced 911 services, is not a

          7  luxury, but a necessity for which New Yorkers are

          8  already paying.  As such, our Office will be

          9  initiating a follow- up study to assess the State's

         10  progress in implementing E- 911 services and

         11  providing New Yorkers with the greatest protections

         12  possible.  I looked forward to sharing our findings

         13  with the City Council, and all New Yorkers, in the

         14  future.

         15                 For your guidance, I provide a copy

         16  of the summary report issued last year from the

         17  Office of the State Comptroller as well as a copy of

         18  the audit of the State Police.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  You

         20  mentioned Assemblyman David Koon, and that he lost a

         21  daughter.  And let me just read to you a quoted that

         22  he had given two years ago.  "Had cell phone locate

         23  technology been available when my daughter,

         24  Jennifer, was murdered, she may have been found in

         25  time and would still be with us today.  Now we have
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          2  this lifesaving technology at our fingertips and we

          3  have the responsibility to use it to keep our loved

          4  safe.  By refusing to allocated funds from 911

          5  surcharge, the Governor is defying federal

          6  regulations established to improve public safety.

          7  This technology came too late to save Jennifer, but

          8  it is not too late to save the lives of people like

          9  her."  And I think that is the purpose of this

         10  hearing today, and we thank you for your support.

         11                 Let me first say, well, let me also

         12  read from the Report issued by your Office prior to

         13  Comptroller Hevesi taking over, back in March of

         14  2002.  He called this one of the most egregious

         15  budget gimmicks we have uncovered.  This audit

         16  clearly shows that the Governor is using cellular

         17  surcharge funds to finance ongoing operations of the

         18  State Police, rather than using the money to develop

         19  the Enhanced 911 System.  This must be corrected.

         20                 So it is safe to assume that

         21  yourself, and as a representative of Comptroller

         22  Hevesi, agree with this analysis.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         24  Yes, this is based on our audit process, which

         25  included a review of the statute and legislative
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          2  attempt, and a back and forth with the State Police

          3  over the law itself.  And what we found was, while

          4  there was no expressed language that required the

          5  kind of distribution of funds that you have been

          6  talking about here, that if you read the intent and

          7  you read the purpose, and you go through what it was

          8  for, it leaves very little doubt to us that the

          9  State should have been involved in setting the

         10  planning for local governments, providing the

         11  funding over the time, and then following up to make

         12  sure that the implementation is done in a way that

         13  is effective for everyone. That is how we read the

         14  law.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I agree with

         16  you in your reading of the law that the State money

         17  should have been, if not had to be, I mean that

         18  might be going a little far, but it should have been

         19  used to enhance our 911 technology, and it wasn't.

         20                 What other avenues are open to your

         21  Office as Comptroller's Office when something like

         22  that happens, when a law is passed and is not

         23  adhered to by the Governor?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         25  While as I said, there is a disagreement.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Can you speak

          3  in closer to the mic?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

          5  Yes, I am sorry. As I said, there is a disagreement

          6  between the Administration and our Office as to how

          7  the money should be used.  We report out our work to

          8  the Legislature, and we receive, the Legislature can

          9  take action, as they did about a month after the

         10  audit came out, they took some action.  I think, as

         11  your report identifies, it was not as clear as you

         12  would like it, so the funds are still not being

         13  distributed in the way that we think.

         14                 So we are going back in with our

         15  follow- up audit, looking at the recommendations

         16  that we made, raising the issue again, and

         17  continuing our presence on it.  And we would like to

         18  see any reports or anything that you come up with,

         19  because we can expand our scope of our next round.

         20  But we are not, we are going to continue on this

         21  topic.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well we look

         23  forward to working with you.  And do you have any

         24  idea when your second report would be completed?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:  A
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          2  few months.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Two months?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:  A

          5  few months.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  A few months.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

          8  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes, your

         10  report, I was just asked because they thought I was

         11  making up the fact that this money was used for to

         12  mow lawns.  But that comes from your report where

         13  you explain that the surcharge revenue is used for

         14  lawn mowing and dry cleaning by the State Police.

         15  So I am not making that up, that is actually a fact.

         16

         17                 And I would like to know if you have

         18  received any explanation from the State how lawn

         19  mowing and dry cleaning actually relate to Enhanced

         20  911 Services?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         22  It does not, and they do not --  I mean, I will read

         23  you what they said to us. They believe that those

         24  charges, in fairness, were legitimate, public safety

         25  charges for the running of the agency.  We did not
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          2  dispute that.

          3                 What they say to us in their

          4  response, they recanted our disagreement, it says,

          5   "Nevertheless, the Division does not agree with the

          6  report's authors, reasoning that the intent of

          7  Section 309 of the County Law was to have the

          8  Division develop and implement an Enhanced Wireless

          9  911 System.  Section 309 was added to the County Law

         10  in 1991, before the technology existed. Moreover,

         11  the series of auditors of the Federal Communication

         12  Commission, directing wireless carriers to meet

         13  certain conditions for Enhanced 911 did not begin to

         14  be initiated until 1996."

         15                 Basically, they are saying that there

         16  are reasons why they are not responsible for pulling

         17  this together.  We believe that the statute does put

         18  them in charge of doing that.  I mean, in theory you

         19  could say all of the money does not have to go for

         20  this purpose, but that there should be a minimum, a

         21  planning agenda to assist local governments and some

         22  money behind it, so that it is not just a local

         23  mandate.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  No, we agree

         25  completely, and I cannot even envision any theory
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          2  that would say none of the money would go to

          3  enhancing 911, and that is apparently the theory

          4  that they subscribe to.

          5                 We, you know, we look forward to

          6  working with you on this, as you said.  And I

          7  believe we can expect your support in fighting to

          8  get us this money back, New York City.  That is

          9  correct, right?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         11  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  So, we

         13  thank you for that.  I do not see any other

         14  questions or Council members, so you are free to

         15  leave.  Thank you very much for coming down today.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER SANZILLO:

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Our next

         19  witness will be from Sprint PCS, Cary Hinton.  Thank

         20  you, Mr. Hinton, for coming down today.  I heard you

         21  came from Washington for this.  You may begin with

         22  your prepared testimony, when you get yourself

         23  situated.

         24                 MR. HINTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25    Well, it looks like I will have to amend the

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  testimony already.  I start with good morning - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Could you just

          4  pull the mic a little closer to you?

          5                 MR. HINTON:  Good afternoon, Mr.

          6  Chairman and members of the Committee of Public

          7  Safety.  My name is Carey B. Hinton.  I represent

          8  Sprint PCS, the Wireless Division of Sprint

          9  Corporation.  I appreciate the opportunity to

         10  testify on the critical issue of warless Enhanced

         11  911 service.

         12                 You have requested that Sprint PCS

         13  provide the Committee with information regarding the

         14  status of Wireless E- 911 phone fees and the current

         15  state of wireless E- 911 technology.  As a leader in

         16  wireless E- 911 service, Sprint is pleased to

         17  provide the following data.

         18                 As required by State law, which was

         19  amended in 2002, Sprint PCS imposes a $1.20 monthly

         20  surcharge on all customers within the State of New

         21  York.  This surcharge is paid to the New York

         22  Department of Taxation and Finance by Sprint on a

         23  quarterly basis.  Prior to August of 2002, the State

         24  911 surcharge was seventy cents per month and was

         25  paid to the New York State Police. For the period of
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          2  January 1, 2002 through November 30th, 2002, Sprint

          3  collected and remitted approximately $12 million to

          4  either the Department of Taxation and Finance or the

          5  State Police.

          6                 In addition to the State 911

          7  surcharge, various local municipalities, including

          8  the City of New York have imposed a 911 surcharge on

          9  wireless service customers at thirty cents per

         10  month.  And let me point out that there is a typo in

         11  the written testimony at this point.  Since October

         12  of 2002, Sprint has remitted approximately $900,000

         13  in 911 surcharge fees to the City of New York.

         14  Sprint has received no monies from either the City

         15  or the State of New York to reimburse it for the

         16  cost it incurred for the various E- 911 services it

         17  has just deployed and is continuing to deploy around

         18  the State.

         19                 The Federal Communications Commission

         20  has required that all wireless service providers be

         21  capable of providing E- 911 services to any

         22  requesting Public Safety Answering Point, known as a

         23  PSAP, that is capable of receiving and utilizing the

         24  information. Wireless E- 911 services are broken

         25  down by the FCC into two categories, Phase I and
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          2  Phase II.  Phase I, E- 911 service provides the PSAP

          3  with the location of the cell site receiving the

          4  call. Phase II provides the PSAP with precise

          5  location information in the form of a latitude and

          6  longitude coordinate.  The precision requires,

          7  excuse me, the precision required of Phase II system

          8  varies based upon the type of technology used by the

          9  wireless service provider.  The FCC's regulations

         10  also acknowledge that not all wireless E- 911 calls

         11  can be located within the same precision. Generally

         12  however, Phase II E- 911 callers are located within

         13  50 to 300 meters, 95 percent of the time.

         14                 Sprint PCS has consistently led the

         15  industry in E 911 services for both Phase I and

         16  Phase II.  Sprint PCS was the first and only

         17  wireless service provider to begin selling global

         18  positioning satellite, known as GPS enable phones to

         19  support Phase II services by October 1, 2001.  Since

         20  launching that initial phone, Sprint PCS has sold

         21  more than 5.8 million GPS enabled phones.  Sprint

         22  PCS completed installation of new national platforms

         23  to support location calculations and upgraded all of

         24  its switches and cell sites nationwide by June of

         25  2002, ahead of the deadline set by the FCC.
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          2                 Sprint PCS cannot deployed Phase I or

          3  Phase II E- 911 service unilaterally, however.  Both

          4  the PSAP and the local telephone company must modify

          5  their equipment to be capable of receiving and

          6  utilizing the latitude and longitude information

          7  transmitted by the wireless service provided.  Until

          8  all three parties have systems in place, E- 911

          9  service cannot be deployed.

         10                 Sprint PCS has completed the work

         11  necessary to support Phase I and Phase II E- 911

         12  services nationwide, and stands ready to work with

         13  PSAPs and local telephone companies to make wireless

         14  E- 911 service a reality.  Sprint has not made cost

         15  reimbursement for these services a prerequisite to

         16  their deployment.  Sprint PCS has deployed Phase I,

         17  E- 911 service to more than 1,600 PSAPs across the

         18  United States, including 37 PSAPs in 13 markets in

         19  the State of New York.

         20                 Sprint PCS began providing Phase I,

         21  E- 911 service for the City of New York in December

         22  of 2002.  Sprint PCS has also deployed Phase II

         23  service in 22 markets nationally, covering 122

         24  PSAPs.  Within the State of New York Sprint has

         25  launched Phase II, E- 911 services in Cattaraugus
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          2  County, Orleans County, and most recently in

          3  Schenectady County.  Within the State of New York,

          4  14 additional markets are in the testing or

          5  deployment process by PCS for Phase II service.  As

          6  of today, as has been reported, of course, by prior

          7  witnesses, New York City has not requested Phase II,

          8  E- 911 service from Sprint PCS.

          9                 Again, Sprint PCS is proud of its

         10  record of leadership in the provision of E- 911

         11  services to our customers.  I would like to thank

         12  this Committee for the opportunity to appear before

         13  you to discuss these issues.  To the extent you

         14  require additional information, I would be happy to

         15  take your questions and gather responses from the

         16  appropriate technical staff within the company.

         17                 If there are any other questions, I

         18  would be happy to answer them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  I

         20  have a few. Your testimony was very helpful so far.

         21  You said that you have been selling global

         22  positioning satellite enabled phones to support

         23  Phase II since October 2001, and you sold over 5.8

         24  million already?

         25                 MR. HINTON: That is correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How many of

          3  those are, would you know how many of those are in

          4  New York City?

          5                 MR. HINTON:  No, I do not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think the

          7  most important part of your testimony is that you

          8  said you have completed the work necessary to

          9  support Phase I and Phase II, and stand ready to

         10  work with the PSAPs, which are PSACs here just for

         11  other persons, for the benefit of everyone else, to

         12  make this a reality, and you have not made the cost

         13  of reimbursement a prerequisite.

         14                 Now, I think what you are saying

         15  there is you are ready to go as soon as the City is

         16  ready to go.  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. HINTON:  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Have you been

         19  working with the City?

         20                 MR. HINTON:  Absolutely, we have been

         21  working with them, and as I indicated, we have

         22  already deployed Phase I service, and we stand ready

         23  to receive the request and work with them to

         24  deployed Phase II service, frankly, with any county

         25  or with the State Police in the State of New York.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now you

          3  testified that you already have Phase II is in three

          4  other counties in New York State?

          5                 MR. HINTON:  Three counties, we have

          6  initiated Phase II service.  So clearly, we are

          7  capable of providing that service in the State of

          8  New York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How long has

         10  that been operational?

         11                 MR. HINTON:  The longest one would be

         12  Erie County. And if you would pardon me while I

         13  check the date that that was launched.  Excuse me, I

         14  misspoke, I said Erie, I meant Cattaraugus County,

         15  and that was launched, oh, both Cattaraugus and

         16  Orleans County were launched approximately two weeks

         17  ago.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You said two

         19  weeks ago?

         20                 MR. HINTON:  For Phase II service.

         21  We launched Schenectady County last week.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how about

         23  another area of the country, how long have they been

         24  operational?

         25                 MR. HINTON:  For Phase II service,
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          2  just do a quick look to see if I, all of those began

          3  last year.  I don't believe, with the exception of,

          4  I think of Rhode Island.   Rhode Island we started

          5  in late 2001, that is the first market we began

          6  providing Phase II service.  And then, of course,

          7  during 2002, we began deploying it at the request of

          8  PSAPs, municipalities or states in other areas of

          9  the country.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And where you

         11  are deploying it, is it working as it is intended

         12  too?

         13                 MR. HINTON:  Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, explain to

         15  us, if you will, well, you heard that the Police

         16  Department's testimony about how they are

         17  implementing a mapping system and having some

         18  problems, and about to do a study, or get the

         19  results of a study as to whether it is compatible.

         20                 What is your take on that?

         21                 MR. HINTON:  In all honesty, this is

         22  the first I have heard of this discussion, and I

         23  would have to defer to our technical staff as to

         24  whether they have had similar discussions for these

         25  interim mapping techniques in other jurisdictions.
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          2  I am really not in a position to be able to respond

          3  to that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You may not be

          5  able to answer this then.  But would you know why we

          6  would not be compatible, but other counties in New

          7  York State would be?

          8                 MR. HINTON:  Well, as I have noted,

          9  there are three counties, or at least, to be

         10  accurate about this, there are two counties and the

         11  State Police for one county that have requested

         12  Sprint PCS to deploy Phase II service.  They have

         13  mapping systems that they have installed for their

         14  PSAPs.

         15                 Now whether their mapping system is

         16  the same as what is being talked about by the Police

         17  Department, I frankly, do not know.  Perhaps our

         18  technical staff might be able to respond to that

         19  after they have been informed by the Police

         20  Department as to what their intent is.  But at this

         21  point, we do not have the ability to be able to draw

         22  that comparison.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We will reach

         24  out to your staff then, for an explanation as to

         25  what the Police Department is attempting to do, and
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          2  whether that will work or not.

          3                 We also had some discussion about the

          4  difference between GPS and triangulation.  So, am I

          5  to understand that your company will use GPS and not

          6  triangulation, and maybe a little bit of explanation

          7  from you as to what that means, might be

          8  appropriate?

          9                 MR. HINTON:  Well, I can say that,

         10  yes, all of our phones are, that we will be

         11  utilizing for Phase II service will have installed

         12  in them a GPS chip as it is called.  As far as

         13  triangulation, that is a system that is being used

         14  by some of our competitors, and frankly, it would

         15  probably be more appropriate to ask them about what

         16  triangulation system that they are going to be

         17  utilizing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, I assume

         19  that you believe then that your system of GPS is

         20  superior for New York City than a triangulation

         21  system?

         22                 MR. HINTON:  Let me respond in a kind

         23  of a broader fashion.  Sprint PCS utilizes a network

         24  system that differs from most of our competitors,

         25  and in that, we think that that system, whether it
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          2  be for providing Phase I or Phase II service, or

          3  frankly, for the other types of calling in data

          4  services that we provide, we think it provides a

          5  superior service for our customers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We commend you

          7  for what you said today, and for the fact that you

          8  are ready to go on this without reimbursement from

          9  the City.

         10                 But all is not that well, as I did

         11  have Sprint at some point, and I do realize as most

         12  people do, that all phone companies have dead spots.

         13    And if you are in a dead spot, you cannot reach

         14  911.

         15                 What are you doing to solve that

         16  problem?

         17                 MR. HINTON:  We are, as we speak,

         18  still working to add additional cell sites in the

         19  City of New York as well as in the State.  And I

         20  think what you have identified has, frankly, been

         21  one of our problems is that there are still

         22  difficulties of us being able to locate antennae in

         23  the City of New York.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  When you said

         25  that you are not expecting reimbursement, was that
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          2  ever part of the equation, could that have been part

          3  of any of the holdups that we have heard about?

          4                 MR. HINTON:  That has been an issue

          5  for the wireless industry in general, both in New

          6  York, and frankly, in other jurisdictions.  The

          7  issue of cost reimbursement or cost recovery has

          8  been a matter of significant concern for a number of

          9  the other wireless carriers.  It, frankly, was an

         10  issue in the debate about the State legislation for

         11  the last two years.

         12                 However, it has not been a

         13  prerequisite for our company in order to deploy

         14  those services.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  One moment.

         16                 MR. HINTON:  No problem.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You heard the

         18  City's testimony.  Is there anything that the Police

         19  Department can do that it is not, to speed up this

         20  process?

         21                 MR. HINTON:  I am really not

         22  qualified to speak technically about the system that

         23  they are planning on deploying and their time

         24  schedule for deploying it.  Suffice it to say, that

         25  we are ready to respond as soon as they make the
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          2  request to us, and we will work expeditiously to

          3  deploy Phase I and, excuse me, Phase II in the City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Should they

          5  have made this request to you already?

          6                 MR. HINTON:  Given the face that we

          7  just deployed Phase I service - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Phase II?

          9                 MR. HINTON:  Excuse me, we have just

         10  deployed Phase I service, it became effective in

         11  December of last year. Technically, it is not

         12  possible to deploy Phase II before you do Phase I.

         13  Secondly, technically it is not possible to deploy

         14  Phase I and Phase II at the same time.  They are

         15  sequential services.

         16                 So whether the Police Department

         17  should have made a request to us at any point in the

         18  last approximate month and a half since Phase I was

         19  initiated in the City or not, I frankly cannot say.

         20  It is typical of what we see in other local

         21  jurisdictions, that after Phase I has been

         22  implemented in those jurisdictions, there will be a

         23  time lag, several months usually, sometimes longer,

         24  before they will make a request for Phase II

         25  service.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  But there will

          3  not be any delay, which results from them not having

          4  made a request as of yet.

          5                 MR. HINTON: Since they have not made

          6  a request to us, I cannot really speculate about - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Once they make

          8  the request, what happens?  Isn't there, is there

          9  some type of study that needs to be done?

         10                 MR. HINTON:  Once they make a

         11  request, we are required by rule of the FCC to have

         12  Phase II deployed within six months.  And that is

         13  true not only of Sprint PCS, but all wireless

         14  carriers.  And we have met that request, I should

         15  say, met that requirement we have had those requests

         16  in other local jurisdictions.  And I fully expect

         17  that we would meet that in the City of New York,

         18  once we receive a formal request from the Police

         19  Department.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And what

         21  happens during that six months, what does that

         22  period entail?

         23                 MR. HINTON: Well, again, not to go

         24  into all the technical details, because I am not the

         25  technical witness.  But in general it does require
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          2  modifications to be made at each of the cell sites

          3  that we have in the City of New York, at least, on

          4  our part, that is what we have to do.

          5                 As far as the modifications, they

          6  have to be made by the Department.  You have heard

          7  their judgement is about what they need to do.  And

          8  in addition, as I indicated in my testimony, there

          9  would have to be equipment modifications made by

         10  Verizon wire line service.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  But we know it

         12  is coming, I can assure you it is coming.

         13                 MR. HINTON: Good.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  In fact, if I

         15  have to have a hearing every week, it will happen.

         16  So why can't we start that process of you modifying

         17  whatever you need to do to get this thing going so

         18  that we do not have to wait six months?

         19                 MR. HINTON:  Well again, the request

         20  has to come from the City.  You know, presumably

         21  from the Police Department. So, once they make that

         22  request to us, then we will begin making those

         23  modifications to our equipment so that they will be

         24  compatible with the systems that they have.  Because

         25  the systems that are used by, whether it be the New
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          2  York Police Department, or be a Sheriff's Department

          3  in an Upstate County, those may be different.  So we

          4  cannot start making the adjustments to our equipment

          5  until we know what they have in place.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Does this, does

          7  what you are saying apply also to other companies

          8  like Verizon, would they have a different system in

          9  place?

         10                 MR. HINTON:  They will have different

         11  systems that they use, but, in general, in the

         12  industry all of them will need to make modifications

         13  on a cell site by cell site basis.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And they are

         15  all held to the six months standard?

         16                 MR. HINTON:  Yes, they are.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Council

         18  Member Reed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         20  Council Member Vallone.  Mr. Hinton?

         21                 MR. HINTON:  That is correct, Council

         22  Member Reed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  When you say

         24  modifications to the cell site, is that the same as

         25  when the Police were testifying about the towers?
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          2                 MR. HINTON:  Well, - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Is the cell

          4  site that you are talking about the same as when

          5  they say towers?

          6                 MR. HINTON:  That is a generalism

          7  that is used.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What is a

          9  generalism, Sir?

         10                 MR. HINTON:  When one refers to cell

         11  sites as being towers.  As a matter of fact, in the

         12  City of New York, Sprint PCS does not have any

         13  towers located within the City of New York.  Now

         14  certainly, Upstate New York we have hundreds of

         15  towers, if not thousands, as we move across the

         16  United States we have towers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So when you say

         18  a cell site, Sir, what are you talking about?

         19                 MR. HINTON:  We are talking about a

         20  location in which we have an array of antennae, and

         21  those antennae are located on a fixed structure,

         22  usually a building.  But in some cases they may be

         23  other types of structures.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And a lot of

         25  times when we see these apartment buildings with
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          2  these racks, that is similar to what we are speaking

          3  about?

          4                 MR. HINTON:  That will be a cell site

          5  in our terminology.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And those are

          7  all proprietary, so that they are yours or they are

          8  some other carrier, but they are proprietary?

          9                 MR. HINTON:  That is correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And how many do

         11  you have in the City of New York?

         12                 MR. HINTON:  Within the City of New

         13  York, we have approximately 400 cell sites.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And when you

         15  say those have to be upgraded, that is going to

         16  happen at your expense?

         17                 MR. HINTON:  They have to be

         18  modified.  I would not call it an upgraded.  We do

         19  not go in and replace any of the antennae, we do not

         20  replace the base station equipment.  But we do have

         21  to go into those equipment cabinets where we have

         22  essentially computerized switching, and we have to

         23  make some modifications to that switching to provide

         24  the capability for that site to be Phase II

         25  operational.  And we have to do that site by cell
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          2  site.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And that is a

          4  cost that will be born by the companies?

          5                 MR. HINTON:  It will be born by our

          6  companies and our customers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And every other

          8  carrier has a similar technology, so they will all

          9  have to do something fairly similar.

         10                 MR. HINTON:  Similar technology

         11  regarding cost recovery, I cannot respond to that --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I am sorry, I

         13  did not mean cost recovery, but I meant, they will

         14  have to send somebody out to the site, and make

         15  these modifications.

         16                 MR. HINTON:  In general, that is

         17  true.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And I was

         19  trying to read through your testimony briefly.  This

         20  business about my own cell phone, having to have the

         21  capability, is that an issue too?  So, you have to

         22  have this, what is it?

         23                 MR. HINTON:  GPS.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  GPS?

         25                 MR. HINTON:  It is a global
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          2  positioning satellite. That is basically the

          3  satellites that are up there that will bounce back

          4  the signal, and they will home in.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But what does

          6  my phone have to have?

          7                 MR. HINTON:  It has to have it, a

          8  microchip, shall we say that has to be embedded in

          9  that phone, so to, in simplistic terms, that means

         10  that older phones, and I do not know if I have got

         11  mine on me, here it is.  A phone such as this, which

         12  is an older phone does not have a GPS chip that is

         13  in it.  This phone is over a year old, more like a

         14  year and a half old.

         15                 But the phones that we are currently

         16  selling, and they are being sold by our retailers,

         17  such as Radio Shack, the great majority of those

         18  phones have been upgraded by the manufacturers so

         19  that they have a GPS chip that is embedded in it.

         20  That then will allow us, when we deployed Phase II

         21  service, to be able to obtain the locational

         22  information from that specific phone.

         23                 Phase II service will not get the

         24  same information from a phone that does not have a

         25  GPS chip.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Well two

          3  things, one, is that something, is that a feature

          4  that, in fact, you advertise that you have?   I

          5  mean, that somebody would irrespective of the issue

          6  that we are looking for in New York, I would think

          7  that, you know, I would want to know if it had that>

          8                 MR. HINTON:  I was just conferring

          9  with an associate of mine from the company.  The

         10  packaging that our phones come in from a Sprint PCS

         11  store, or from a Radio Shack store, or from one of

         12  our other retailing partners, will include

         13  information on the boxes, as well as in the owner's

         14  manual regarding their GPS capability.  But as far

         15  as general advertising in the print media or on

         16  television, to my knowledge, we are not specifically

         17  advertising that one particular phone or another

         18  phone is GPS capable.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And so that

         20  system, but if it is, then that is compatible

         21  wherever I am in the country, if there is that

         22  system in place.

         23                 MR. HINTON:  That is correct.  If

         24  Phase II has been implemented say in the State of

         25  Iowa, and you happen to fly to Debuke, Iowa, and you
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          2  dial 911 on a Sprint PCS phone in Debuke, Iowa,

          3  where we have deployed Phase II service, for

          4  example.  Even though you bought your phone from a

          5  PCS store here in the City of New York, that PSAP in

          6  Debuke, Iowa will pick up the locational information

          7  from your phone with the GPS chip that you purchased

          8  here in the City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So you could be

         10  located, whether you want to be or not?

         11                 MR. HINTON:  Well, you can only be

         12  located if you call the 911.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Only if you

         14  call 911.

         15                 MR. HINTON:  Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Because you

         17  know, it has been said to me, and I am sitting here,

         18  we all watch these cop shows, and everybody seems to

         19  find everybody based on where their cell phone was

         20  from.  So, that is really just, that is what could

         21  happen, that in reality that is not what is

         22  happening every day, obviously, here in New York,

         23  right?

         24                 MR. HINTON:  I am sure that you will

         25  appreciate that those television shows that you are

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  referring to are fiction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Is that right?

          4  Okay, and the Council is never fiction, I can tell

          5  you that.

          6                 Thank you very much.  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

          9  Phil.  We may have to consider banning other types

         10  of cell phones too, huh?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  You know I am

         12  trying to be cell phone friendly today.

         13                 MR. HINTON:  I appreciate that,

         14  Councilman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  In your

         16  testimony you said that Sprint cannot deployed Phase

         17  II unilaterally, both the PSAP and the local

         18  telephone company must modify their equipment.

         19                 MR. HINTON:  That is correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I do not want

         21  to throw any wrenches into things here, what does

         22  that mean, local telephone companies, are they ready

         23  to go?

         24                 MR. HINTON:  That mean Verizon.  I

         25  cannot speak on behalf of Verizon.  I am not
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          2  employed by them, obviously, I am not their

          3  spokesman.  You will have to discuss with Verizon

          4  spokesman as to their ability to work with the

          5  wireless carriers to deployed Phase II service.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We have to be

          7  nice to Verizon, now they are drawing the

          8  redistricting lines, the Chief.

          9                 MR. HINTON:  I don't know if I would

         10  go that far.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  No, but we will

         12  not be, don't worry about it.  I mean you said you

         13  cannot deploy them unilaterally.  If the Police are

         14  ready to go and you are ready to go, I mean there is

         15  a huge component here that we are not speaking

         16  about.

         17                 Would you, do you have any knowledge

         18  of whether Verizon is ready to go?

         19                 MR. HINTON:  No, I do not have

         20  knowledge whether they are ready to go here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What do they

         22  have to do?

         23                 MR. HINTON:  I can tell you though

         24  that in the other three jurisdictions where we have

         25  deployed Phase II that Verizon has been cooperative.
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          2    And I might point out that it is not a huge cost

          3  issue for Verizon to be able to work with the other,

          4  shall we say with the other two parties in this

          5  endeavor to be able to deployed Phase II service.

          6  The cost - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We will reach

          8  out to Verizon and get that information.  Yes, you

          9  mentioned cost, and before you said it would be born

         10  by your company and the customers.  With the money

         11  with the state that we are not receiving now help to

         12  defray that cost to the customers, if you received

         13  that money?

         14                 MR. HINTON: Well it would help defray

         15  the cost to the customers in the sense that it would

         16   - -  Let me see if I understand your question, you

         17  are talking about the money that is going to the

         18  State, the $1.20 that is going to the State.  If the

         19  City receives some of that money, indirectly, it

         20  would help to fray the cost to our customers by

         21  virtue of potentially of whatever taxes or fees that

         22  they may have to pay to the City otherwise.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  But what about

         24  if you receive some reimbursement out of that money?

         25                 MR. HINTON:  As I said, we are not
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          2  seeking reimbursement for Phase II in particular.

          3  Nor have we sought Phase I cost recovery from the

          4  State.

          5                 Now certainly some of our competitors

          6  have requested, particularly for Phase I service, at

          7  least in a broad sense.  But there is no mechanism

          8  that the state has provided to allow any wireless

          9  carrier to obtain cost recovery either from the

         10  State of from localities, at least, not in this

         11  State.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Thank

         13  you very much for coming down today, I appreciate

         14  it.

         15                 MR. HINTON:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Our next

         17  witness will be DC37, Local 1549.  We will have

         18  three members come up, Mr. Arnero, Ms. Rabbi, and

         19  Ms. Roper, and guests, apparently.

         20                 Thank you, please identify

         21  yourselves, and then I believe Ms. Roper has a

         22  statement.

         23                 MS. RABB:  Sheila Rabb, Council

         24  representative, DC 37.

         25                 MS. ROPER:  Alma Roper, Chairperson,

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  911.

          3                 MR. ARNERO:  Ron Arnero, Assistant

          4  Director, Clerical Division, DC 37.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you very

          6  much for coming down.  Please begin.

          7                 MS. ROPER:  Thank you.  Good

          8  afternoon, Councilman Vallone and members of the

          9  Committee of Public Safety.  My name is Alma Roper,

         10  and I am the Chairperson of the PCT/SPCT Chapter of

         11  Local 1549, District Council 37.  My members are the

         12  911 operators, dispatchers, and supervisors at the

         13  New York City's 911 emergency call center.  Here

         14  with me today form my Executive Board is Roz

         15  Jenkins, Director of 1549 Clerical Division, Ronnie

         16  Harris, Assistant Director Ron Arnero, and Council

         17  Representative, Shiela Rabb.

         18                 I am here today in support of

         19  Resolution No. 193- A. I strongly urge the New York

         20  State Legislature to amend Article 6 of the County

         21  Law so that municipalities will receive their own

         22  surcharge for implementation and maintenance of

         23  their own 911 emergency Telecommunications system.

         24                 The reason for our support is that

         25  each day our operators, dispatchers and supervisors
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          2  receive or assist cell phone users who cannot

          3  identify their geographic location.  We have to

          4  waste valuable time to identify the caller's

          5  location.  We normally don't have the luxury of

          6  time.  The calls often disconnect operating are

          7  unclear, and we are unable to render assistance.  As

          8  in the Long Island Sound tragedy, we did not have

          9  sufficient information to provide a response.

         10  Police Commissioner Kelly has also stated that there

         11  was insufficient information.

         12                 The Enhanced 911 system has been on

         13  the drawing board since 1991.  District Council 37

         14  and Local 1549 supported the Legislature in 1991

         15  that imposed a monthly surcharge for the Enhanced

         16  technology for 911.  This technology could pinpoint

         17  cell phone calls and it could potentially avert

         18  future tragedies such as the Long Island Sound

         19  incident.

         20                 I am taking this opportunity to state

         21  that my members are dedicated to providing emergency

         22  service to the City of New York and providing

         23  immediate assistance is the number one priority of

         24  the men and women who staff the 911 emergency call

         25  center.
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          2                 On behalf of my members, Local 1549

          3  and District Council 37, I would like to sincerely

          4  state that our hearts go out to the families of the

          5  four teenagers lost in the Long Island Sound.

          6                 I would like to thank each Committee

          7  member for giving me the opportunity to state our

          8  support of Resolution 193- A.

          9                 I thank you, if you have any

         10  questions, we would be happy to answer them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.

         12  First, let me thank you and your entire Union and

         13  everyone you represent for the work that you do

         14  every day.  We understand how stressful that is, how

         15  complicated that is.  And obviously there is an

         16  investigation going on into what happened, so I am

         17  not going to go into that. But I do want to say that

         18  that points out how rarely we do hear of problems of

         19  this nature, of problems of people not getting the

         20  help they should get at 911.  So we appreciate the

         21  work you do, and the fact that you came down here to

         22  testify today.

         23                 MS. ROPER:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We also

         25  appreciate your support for our Resolution.  We were
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          2  going to vote that today, and it is a Resolution

          3  that does call for the State's to use our money to

          4  enhance 911, as you said here, unfortunately,

          5  because of the fact that many of my members are in

          6  Albany today arguing for this and other things, we

          7  will vote it on a future day, but I will let them

          8  know of your support.

          9                 I believe the Police Department also

         10  supports it, although, I forgot to get that on

         11  record, but I will, and therefore, I do not see any

         12  problem with that coming through this Committee and

         13  being voted on by the entire Council in the near

         14  future.  So thank you for your support on that.

         15                 In general, though, we discussed it

         16  with the Police Department the situation happening

         17  with your operators and dispatchers.   Now do you

         18  feel there is enough training and enough staffing

         19  there presently?

         20                 MS. ROPER:  Staffing and training?  I

         21  feel that we should have more qualified  trainers.

         22  Right now we do have, we have a good amount, but

         23  with the amount of operators that we have now, I

         24  feel that the training unit could be larger than

         25  what it is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And what is the

          3  breakdown regarding trainers and operators?

          4                 MR. ROPER:  I think we have 12, about

          5  12 supervisors in the training area.  I am not quite

          6  for sure how many trainers we have in the training

          7  department.  We have a little over, a little under

          8  1,100 PCTs and SPCTs at this time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Just for the

         10  benefit of everyone here, PCTs and SPCTs --

         11                 MS. ROPER:  Police Communication

         12  Technicians, PCTs are 911 operators, their titles

         13  are Police Communication Technicians, SPCTs are

         14  Supervisors of the Police Communication Technician.

         15  They supervise a 911 operator.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And we have

         17  heard testimony that you receive much of this

         18  training through bulletins, and that are received by

         19  your members.  How does this work?

         20                 MR. ROPER:  Like they stated, like

         21  the Police Department stated earlier, it is

         22  procedures that are given out to remind operators

         23  and supervisors of the different techniques that is

         24  going on.  Most of the time it is done at the

         25  beginning of the month.  And they usually do it on
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          2  their first break, and it depends on what tour you

          3  work on, when your first break is.  Some first

          4  breaks may be 15 minutes, some can be a half- hour,

          5  it all depends. And they usually do it upstairs in

          6  the training unit.

          7                 For supervisors, our principal,

          8  Principal 1, who is the police, who is the principal

          9  of the police communication technician, who

         10  supervise the supervisors of 911.  They normally

         11  just hand her, just give us the procedures for

         12  training, and we just sign for them.  And on our own

         13  time, we read them. Supervisors are not trained like

         14  the PCTs, they usually go upstairs in the training

         15  room for that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, I am just a

         17  little unclear.  For the rank and file, they are not

         18  just handed the memo, and they do not just read it

         19  on their own time, it is explained to them.  But for

         20  the supervisors, they are just handed the memory?

         21                 MS. ROPER:  Supervisors are basically

         22  handed the memos.  Some principal will have the time

         23  to explain them, which is like five or ten minutes,

         24  sometimes they don't.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  And what
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          2  is your opinion of this system?

          3                 MS. ROPER:  Well, honestly, I am on

          4  the job now for 14 years.  Of years ago, we used to

          5  have unit training, which was divided into two

          6  sessions.  We usually had the training for about

          7  four hours.  The first session would be about four

          8  hours, the beginning of the tour.  And the second

          9  session would be the next four hours, the end of the

         10  tour.  I thought that was a better way of training,

         11  because you are in a classroom setting, and you are

         12  not just handed a piece of paper and say, here, go

         13  study this.  You sit there and the training officer

         14  goes over all the procedures, they don't just read

         15  it, he or she breaks it down.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  When did they

         17  switch?

         18                 MS. ROPER:  About eight or nine years

         19  now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do you know

         21  why?

         22                 MS. ROPER:  No, no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  And I

         24  don't know if I interrupted you, did you have

         25  anything else to say about your preferred way of
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          2  training?

          3                 MS. ROPER:  No, do you have

          4  something?

          5                 MR. ARNERO:  In regards to the

          6  training though, when you eliminate formal training

          7  of three and a half, four hours training you do it

          8  in a way where you need the staffing on the floor,

          9  and over the last years, which the Police Department

         10  did state that there was a lot of overtime, a little

         11  less than about three or four years ago, it was a

         12  tremendous amount of overtime, so they were able to

         13  increase the staffing of 911.

         14                 Prior to that and one of the reasons

         15  the unit training was eliminated was because it was

         16  not enough staffing on the floors there, but to go

         17  back to formal training, where people can absorb the

         18  information that is being brought to them and they

         19  are being trained on, they need more time, they need

         20  to be able to have that exchange with the instructor

         21  to absorb each and everyone of these directives.

         22  Because we are understanding that each directive

         23  could be several pages with a lot of different

         24  angles in a particular directive.  And today, all

         25  they are getting is 10, 15, 20 minutes of training
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          2  where all they are shown the directive, and now they

          3  have got to go on their own and read it, and try to

          4  decipher it, and there is no time for the exchange.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think what

          6  they will say and what they have said is that in

          7  order to have that type of training, they need to

          8  bring people in on overtime or have more staffing,

          9  which they do not have now.  So it is probably a

         10  function of the budget cuts where they are

         11  decreasing the time and trying to do it on your

         12  regular time as opposed to on overtime.  But we will

         13  look into that for you.

         14                 Council Member Reed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.  How are you all?  I am sorry I had to step

         17  out of the room.  The Police Department, I think,

         18  yes, was testifying that there has been a

         19  significant reduction in the overtime, and the

         20  amount of money was $2 million, it went down to

         21  $500,000, that is pretty significant. And I recall a

         22  rather tumultuous hearing a couple of years ago, it

         23  was in the previous Administration.  Where you folks

         24  were telling us about the problems with mandatory

         25  overtime.  The stress the people were having, and we
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          2  recognize that there was huge number of people who

          3  were taking sick days, and absent, and all that

          4  because of the stress, it was the only way you could

          5  get a day off.

          6                 The turnover was, it was just the

          7  morale, it was all quite a nightmare.  And I was a

          8  bit shocked, the media covered it superficially, but

          9  to me it was really, it scared me, that that was,

         10  that the system was in that much chaos.

         11                 Could you just briefly tell me, is

         12  the perception because we brought down the overtime

         13  that there is, in fact, less stress to this, and

         14  some of the situation and issues are being resolved?

         15    Because also in that their testimony was, and I am

         16  not trying to find fault with them, I am just trying

         17  to find out what the reality is.

         18                 There was also testimony, I forget

         19  exactly how it was phrased, but they have a lot more

         20  Spanish- speaking operators, or people, I guess,

         21  bilingual, because now only 15 percent, that was

         22  another issue that was raised, particularly, with

         23  Spanish being the second most dominant language

         24  here.  That in their testimony they said, it went

         25  from about 15 percent of the calls are now handled
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          2  by the service that we hired, because they have

          3  enough people.

          4                 So could you, just briefly, tell me

          5  what your sense is, is it less fraught with tension

          6  in that environment?  Are people not having to do

          7  overtime as much as they were previously?

          8                 MS. ROPER:  Well we still, I am

          9  sorry, we still do overtime.  Supervisors have

         10  mandatory overtime now, more so, than the PCTs.  I'm

         11  sorry?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  DCTs?

         13                 MS. ROPER:  P, Peter, Charlie,

         14  Thomas, Police Communication Technician, 911

         15  operators.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.

         17                 MS. ROPER:  I am used to saying PCTs

         18  because that is what we call them on the job, but

         19  the 911 operators and the dispatchers.  The

         20  supervisors have the overtime, we are mandatory

         21  overtime, I am a supervisor at 911 as well.

         22                 The 911 operators overtime is not,

         23  they still have some, but not as much as they had

         24  before.  The stress is still there, this job is a

         25  high stress job every day when we walk in all we
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          2  hear is the worst thing that is happening in New

          3  York City.  We do not only take calls from 911 and

          4  in the five boroughs of New York.  We also take

          5  calls from Connecticut, Jersey.  We take calls all

          6  over.  I mean sometimes we get calls from

          7  Pennsylvania, down South.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Why is that?

          9                 MS. ROPER:  Because people from New

         10  York are calling because they cannot get in contact

         11  with a relative.  And we have an inner- city

         12  correspondent that we do, you know, we do courtesy

         13  calls, call the Police Department in whatever city

         14  and have them check on that.  So, and also

         15  dispatching, it is very, very stressful, the 10-

         16  13s, the training of the dispatching.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What are 10-

         18  13s?

         19                 MS. ROPER:  I is when a police

         20  officer need assistant.  It is a high stress job, we

         21  never stop.  When we walk in, we never stop, it is

         22  continuous, the phones never stop ringing. Everyone

         23  is calling, everyone's problem is more than someone

         24  else's.  You know, it is a high stress job, and yes,

         25  the stress is still there and we still have the
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          2  overtime, and supervisors do have mandatory overtime

          3  now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But the

          5  overtime is more directed to the supervisory staff

          6  than it is now - -

          7                 MS. ROPER:  More so.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: - -  then it had

          9  been before to the 911 operators.

         10                 MS. ROPER:  Exactly.  But 911

         11  operators still have some overtime.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  But not

         13  mandatory like we used to.

         14                 MS. ROPER:  Not like it was, no, no,

         15  it was incredible the last time, not like it was.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  I

         19  assume you support 311, would that aid in your, in

         20  the job that you do?

         21                 MR. ARNERO:  The 311 system is a new

         22  system that New York City has implemented, and we

         23  definitely do support it.  We are hoping that it

         24  does take the edge off of some of the calls going to

         25  911, but that will only be proven down the road.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  And you,

          3  obviously, testified in support of getting our

          4  Enhanced 911 as soon as possible.  I assume that

          5  everything is ready on your end to implement that.

          6                 MS. ROPER:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes.  And do

          8  you have any knowledge that we may not have heard

          9  regarding its implementation or why the delays have

         10  occurred?

         11                 MS. ROPER:  No, not really, we are

         12  waiting patiently.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We are waiting,

         14  not as patiently as you, up here.

         15                 MS. ROPER:  And I am sorry, I must

         16  apologize, this is my first time every doing this,

         17  and I am extremely nervous.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well you are

         19  doing fine, and other than, Mr. Reed, viciously

         20  attacking you, I think you did well.

         21                 MS. ROPER:  I forgive him.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you for

         23  coming down today, and you did fine.  Thank you.

         24                 MS. ROPER:  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I love, Alma.
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          2                 MS. ROPER:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Our next

          4  witness will be Sally Regenhard and Monica Gabrielle

          5  for the Skyscrapers Safety Campaign.

          6                 Thank you, Ms. Regenhard.  Let me say

          7  from the outset that you have worked with us in the

          8  past on other hearings, and you work with us outside

          9  of the hearing room, and, you know, no one knows

         10  better than we do, your dedication to the cause of

         11  improving our City's responses to emergencies and

         12  protecting our citizens, and we appreciate that, and

         13  we once again appreciate your coming down and

         14  sharing your thoughts with us.  So, you may begin.

         15                 MS. REGENHARD:  Thank you, thank you,

         16  Chairman, thank you very much.  I would like to

         17  introduce the gentleman to my right, this is Mr.

         18  Gerald Batiste.  And Mr. Batiste is united with me

         19  in grief, because we both lost our sons, who were

         20  firefighters at the World Trade Center.  Essentially

         21  for a lack of communication issue, so we are all

         22  connected here today.

         23                 My Co- Chair, Monica Gabrielle is

         24  going to make her presentation first.  She is also,

         25  she has a presentation for someone who like to be
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          2  here, but cannot, also.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Do we have

          4  copies?

          5                 MS. GABRIELLE:  Yes, they are on the

          6  table.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Just give us

          8  one second.  You did give a copy over?

          9                 MS. GABRIELLE:  She stapled them

         10  together.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You can begin,

         12  we will catch up.

         13                 MS. GABRIELLE:  Good afternoon.  I

         14  would like to begin with a letter from a widow of

         15  911, she could not be here and I am just going to

         16  read her statement quickly.  This letter is from

         17  Laura Weinberg Aronow, and is in memory of her late

         18  husband, Richard Aronow, who was lost in the World

         19  Trade Center, but might have been saved if New York

         20  City had a working E- 911 cell phone system.  And

         21  she states:

         22                  "I regret that I cannot attend this

         23  hearing and appreciate the opportunity to provide

         24  testimony on behalf of everyone who lives and works

         25  in tall buildings.  I believe that with the type of
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          2  system you are considering, my husband would not

          3  have died on September 11th, 2001.  It is no small

          4  irony that he was the Attorney for the Port of

          5  Authority of New York and New Jersey who handled all

          6  of the ports, telecommunication matters. Among other

          7  things, he worked to establish the original phone

          8  transmission systems from the roof of the World

          9  Trade Center, and he also worked to equip the

         10  Holland and Lincoln Tunnels for cell phone usage.

         11                 His body was found intact in October

         12  of 2001.  He was found together with colleagues, all

         13  of them stuck in an elevator for the underground

         14  garage of the World Trade Center. They had been

         15  going up in that elevator when the first plane hit.

         16  The elevator shut down, trapping them underground,

         17  otherwise, unharmed.  They were trapped just a

         18  couple of flights below ground.

         19                 If someone had known that were people

         20  were trapped so nearby the lobby level, but out of

         21  the main elevator bank, the rescuers would surely

         22  have gone to the elevator and opened the door.  My

         23  husband and his friends were only a couple of

         24  minutes away from reaching the street.  However,

         25  unfortunately for them, Rich and friends could not
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          2  make good use of their cell phones in the emergency.

          3    Sadly, they could not get a cell phone service

          4  from that location in the building to reach the

          5  outside world.  I say this because none of them

          6  phone family despite having several functioning cell

          7  phones with them and ample time.  Even worse they

          8  were not able to transmit their location within the

          9  building to alert emergency crews to their location.

         10    A land line, such as the telephone on their desk

         11  upstairs, can be located.  Until my husband

         12  disappeared on September 11, 2001, it never occurred

         13  to me that a cell phone's signal cannot be located.

         14                 Skyscrapers hold as many people as

         15  some cities. First communication should work as well

         16  within a skyscraper as it does outside.  We need to

         17  recognize that cell phones are an emergency

         18  communication system.  If Rich were alive today, he

         19  would be working on the project to make cell phones

         20  suitable for emergencies tomorrow.

         21                 For the past 10 years we paid a tax

         22  on our cell phones to have an E- 911 system to trace

         23  emergency cell phone calls. We should have had this

         24  system in place on 9/11.  If it had been in place,

         25  how many of the perished could have been saved.  We
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          2  must institute this system immediately.

          3                 Laura thanks for the opportunity to

          4  present these concerns."

          5                 Now I would like to state:

          6                 My name is Monica Gabrielle, and I am

          7  Co- Chairperson of the Skyscrapers Safety Campaign,

          8  and also a widow of 9/11.  The recent unsettling

          9  news that our system has once again broken down and

         10  failed has left me almost speechless.  Once again,

         11  tax dollars and surcharges were misappropriated,

         12  this time for frivolous items and services.

         13                 Four young boys perished needlessly.

         14  Once again, we trusted a system to deliver what it

         15  said it would, upgrade E- 911 service for cell

         16  phones.  I am outraged.  One hundred and sixty- two

         17  million dollars over the course of over 10 years

         18  collected and squandered, taxpayer dollars.  Every

         19  New Yorker who had and has a cell phone paid a

         20  surcharge for a service that was never delivered.

         21  The mobility of cell phones make such tracking

         22  technology crucial in the event of an emergency.

         23  Why was this upgrade not made, who is responsible

         24  for the misappropriation of these funds?

         25                 The fact that all these monies were
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          2  collected and no upgrade was instituted is nothing

          3  short of criminal.  Especially now that there are

          4  four more lives apparently lost.

          5                 On September 11th, we found that the

          6  lack of proper technology within our emergency

          7  services contributed to the large loss of life.  How

          8  many lives could have been saved?

          9                 Today, we find even more lives might

         10  have been saved with the promised upgraded system.

         11  I demand that the taxpayer dollars contributed for

         12  the last decade be immediately applied to upgrade

         13  our E- 911 cell phone system, before more lives are

         14  lost due to government mismanagement.

         15                 Once again, I voice my belief and

         16  accountability and responsibility.  Someone in

         17  responsible for this outrage, someone needs to be

         18  held accountable.

         19                 Thank you for giving me the

         20  opportunity to speak.

         21                 MS. REGENHARD:  I would like to open

         22  by sending the greetings from Virginia Badeo, the

         23  mother of one of the four boys lost on City Island.

         24  She wants to thank you, Chairman Vallone and your

         25  Committee for taking a leadership role in attempting
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          2  to change this system, and I certainly, echo those

          3  sentiments.

          4                 I would like to testify today on

          5  behalf of the Skyscrapers Safety Campaign.  First of

          6  all, at our outrage that we have been paying taxes

          7  on both our regular and cell phone bills for the

          8  past 10 years, for a service which we trusted the

          9  government to provide.  A service which sadly we

         10  have recently found out to be a service that never

         11  existed.

         12                 My testimony goes to the issue of

         13  reliance on the government, and the system which is

         14  supposed to work for the citizens of New York City.

         15  I want to make the analogy to 911, when the public

         16  safety was compromised by a system of

         17  communications, the FDNY radios that unbeknownst to

         18  the public did not work, and both the firefighters

         19  and the public consequently suffered, and many died

         20  who might have been saved.

         21                 The connecting issue is the belief

         22  that the public has in a system, which does not work

         23  properly.  If cell phones could be traced on 9/11,

         24  perhaps both firefigthers and civilians could have

         25  been pulled from the rubble or rescued in some other

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  way.

          3                 The New York City public has been

          4  misled into a false sense of safety.  We deserve to

          5  have the services that we have paid, $162 million

          6  for, in taxes to the State for the past decade.

          7  Where is that money?

          8                 If we have future disasters or a

          9  terrorist attack on New York City, as well as if our

         10  car goes into a ditch and we are stuck there, we

         11  need to have the technology available that is

         12  currently available to small towns and cities across

         13  this country, in order for 911 to respond and rescue

         14  us.  How can we say that we are the greatest city in

         15  the world, when we lack such basic technology?  How

         16  can a city invite the Olympics to New York City when

         17  it cannot even trace a cell phone call?

         18                 Finally, as a parent whose son was

         19  one of the 343 firefighters killed needlessly,

         20  because of a failure in communications and a failure

         21  of the governmental system, I am bonded in grief

         22  with the four parents whose children are apparently

         23  lost off the coast of City Island in the Bronx.  It

         24  is the duty of government to do what they say will

         25  do with our tax money.  It is the duty of the NYPD
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          2  to follow procedure and policy, they did not do this

          3  for the City Island boys.  This puts us all at risk,

          4  and puts the caliber and the training of 9/11

          5  employees into serious question.

          6                 In conclusion, this is once again a

          7  betrayal of trust for the people of New York City.

          8  How does the State government get a way with

          9  diverting dedicated tax funds to pet projects,

         10  thereby, violating the public trust and putting

         11  lives in jeopardy?

         12                 In conclusion, it is the duty of

         13  government to be accountable and responsible for its

         14  actions.  The Skyscraper Safety Campaigning demands

         15  this now.  We vow to help change this system and to

         16  support your work so that the lives of other New

         17  York City residents can be saved in the future.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you both,

         20  and everyone else you brought with you.  Wait, wait,

         21  just one second, we are not through thanking you or

         22  asking you questions.

         23                 MS. REGENHARD:  Oh, okay, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  First of all, I

         25  could not agree more with all of you, and with Ms.
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          2  Badeo and Ms. Aronow. That is why we are here, and

          3  as I said before, I think you were here, the rest of

          4  the Committed would be here, but they are in Albany

          5  making this point, personally.  We are here as your

          6  representative, and we are as outraged, you know, as

          7  you are that our money was taken and our citizens

          8  were left unprotected.

          9                 And I think someone mentioned in

         10  their statement that they were not aware of certain

         11  things about the money being taken and about the

         12  fact that cell phone calls could not be traced. And

         13  I have to say that I have been doing this for a

         14  little over a year now, and I was not aware when I

         15  started in this job that this was occurring either.

         16  And let me first thank my staff here, I have Ted

         17  Baecher and Michele Kalafer, and George Mahalsis,

         18  and Andrew Lenny was here prior to this, but one of

         19  the first things that they did is make me aware of

         20  this.  And make me aware that they have been

         21  fighting through City Council for a while to get

         22  this money.

         23                 And I think my point is that I was

         24  not aware, and the job that you are doing out there,

         25  making the citizens aware of the fact that we just
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          2  cannot trust this to happen, we have to keep

          3  people's feet to the fire and hold them accountable.

          4    We are giving them the money to do this, and you

          5  cannot assume it is being done, and you are out

          6  there letting the public know that, and that is a

          7  noble purpose.  So thank you for coming down, and

          8  thank you for doing that.

          9                 I don't think anyone has any

         10  questions.

         11                 MR. REGENHARD:  Thank you for the

         12  work you are doing for the people of New York.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.  We

         14  now have Eric Adams from 100 Blacks in Law

         15  Enforcement.  Thank you, Mr. Adams for coming down

         16  today.  Do you have prepared testimony for us?

         17                 MR. ADAMS:  No, this is a verbal

         18  testimony.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That is fine,

         20  thanks as long as it is under two hours, we are

         21  okay.

         22                 MR. ADAMS:  First, before I give my

         23  testimony, our organization has had an excellent

         24  relationship with the Public Safety Committee, and

         25  we attempt to ensure to have whatever resources we
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          2  have to assist that Committee.  We have been having

          3  a level of difficulties communicating with your

          4  Office, and we are hoping that we can find a way to

          5  rectify what those communication difficulties are,

          6  so we can continue the relationship with the Public

          7  Safety Committee.

          8                 Some excellent issues were raised,

          9  and we are, I just think many of the things that we

         10  wanted to cover was covered already.  And I would

         11  just like to point out several things.

         12                 1.  911 operators that are also

         13  called Police Communication Technicians, as has been

         14  stated, they deal with over a million calls a month.

         15    And I think to give the impression that 911

         16  operators are not carrying out a professional job at

         17  a minimum, I think is unfair.  And I think that it

         18  gave the wrong impression that many 911 operators

         19  are not doing their job, are not doing what they are

         20  supposed to do.

         21                 There are some clear questions that I

         22  think that we need to present to the Police

         23  Department in the area of the E- 911 operators, and

         24  I am hoping that I could supply your Committee with

         25  some of those issues.
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          2                 1.  As you stated with the issue of

          3  training. Police officers receive what is called in-

          4  service training, 911 operators do not receive that

          5  level of in- service training.  As it currently

          6  states now, they receive training based on, while

          7  they are on their break.  This is a break that is

          8  allowed to them because of the level of stress to

          9  their job.  There needs to be classroom training

         10  with their allocated a number of hours in a

         11  particular time period where they are able to be

         12  trained on upgraded and new information.  Currently,

         13  that does not exist.  The area of training that we

         14  hearing from the Police Department is not the

         15  adequate amount of training that is needed for

         16  highly technical form of assignment that E- 911

         17  operators carry out.

         18                 We have participated in a issue of

         19  problems in E- 911 for the last seven years.  Some

         20  of the major problems is dealing with the conditions

         21  that E- 911 operators operate under.

         22                 1.  911 operators, which are 85

         23  percent female, Black and Hispanic do not receive

         24  the same level of professionalism that Fire

         25  Department operators received, which the ethnic
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          2  makeup is just about different from that.

          3                 In the area of staffing, particularly

          4  the area of staffing dealing with what took place in

          5  this incident with the four young men who lost their

          6  lives.  This is an important area. The supervisor

          7  for that day, that the Police Department must

          8  respond to the issue of the supervisor of that day.

          9  The supervisor that was on the floor that day, was

         10  he assigned to what is called to the operational

         11  floor.

         12                 When we talk about 911, we are

         13  talking about the operational floor.  That is where

         14  911 operators are located, and that is also where

         15  the supervisors are there to supervise 911

         16  operators.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how many

         18  would be there at one time?

         19                 MR. ADAMS:  Okay, and that is

         20  important, because currently the supervisors that

         21  supervise 911 operators are supposed to be, you have

         22  87 out of the 133 supervisors on active duty.  In

         23  many cases, which was not explained today, in many

         24  cases those supervisors are operating our of title.

         25  Meaning, in stead of being on the supervisor floor,
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          2  they are assigned to the administrative office

          3  duties off the supervisor's floor.  They are either

          4  assigned to One Police Plaza or they are assigned to

          5  some other clerical duties.  They are not there to

          6  supervise the 911 operator.

          7                 What happens is that instead of the

          8  allocated number of supervisors, you are overworking

          9  those supervisor and that is where the overtime that

         10  you are hearing about, they are left with the level

         11  of fatigue.  If we put those supervisors on the

         12  floor, and have them perform within title, then they

         13  would receive the level of training that they are

         14  supposed to receive, as you just heard.  The

         15  supervisors are not receiving the training, they are

         16  handed memos, they are told to read those memos, and

         17  in many cases they are receiving what is called on

         18  the job training, and that was the case with the

         19  supervisor that was involved in this incident, he

         20  was not a supervisor that spent much time on the

         21  operational floor.

         22                 And unless we focus on the atmosphere

         23  that 911 operators operate under, because if we go

         24  look at the incident that took place several months

         25  ago, we have the look at the totality of the
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          2  incident, and not just the equipment, because it is

          3  more complicated just then the equipment.  The 911

          4  operators receive a disproportionate number of

          5  command discipline, which are the disciplinary

          6  actions handed out on Police Department personnel.

          7                 The climate which they operate under

          8  is a high stress environment, but the manner in

          9  which we treat 911 operators is an unprofessional

         10  atmosphere, and I am hoping that members of the

         11  Public Safety Committee to take a day to go down to

         12  911, and see the level of equipment that is being

         13  used in comparison to what the operators hear from

         14  the field and what is in the radio room. The

         15  information that was released to the public, the

         16  clearness of that information that was not what the

         17  911 operator heard that day that was a clean up

         18  version and is not what a 911 operator will have to

         19  hear from the field.

         20                 Now as a law enforcement officer, I

         21  have to call on 911 operators while I am in the

         22  field, and hope that the equipment they had allowed

         23  them the opportunity to hear clearly what is being

         24  communicated to them.  This is not taking place.  In

         25  the radio room, the equipment is an updated version,
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          2  but what the actual council had, the council

          3  operator, that PCT, that Police Communication

          4  Technician, does not have the luxury of hearing a

          5  clear communication.  It is a gobble version and it

          6  is just a modified, cosmetic changes and what took

          7  place, or what has been taking place over the years

          8  in the communication.

          9                 So I believe in order for us to

         10  address the issue of preventing a tragedy from

         11  taking place, the level of equipment upgrade or

         12  technology is only one aspect, we must deal with the

         13  condition that E- 911 operators operate under.  The

         14  number of on duty deaths that have taken place in

         15  the 911 operators manpower, the lack of supervisors

         16  that are assigned out of title, the issue of

         17  financial compensation for pay, 911 operators make

         18  less than Fire Department 911 operators, yet, they

         19  hand you an overwhelming number of calls more than

         20  them, and the condition that 911 operators operate

         21  under.  They have been almost a victim of their

         22  success that they have used a Band- Aid approach to

         23  continue the system to operate successfully, and I

         24  do not think we are truly understanding how

         25  successful they have been with that job.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Adams, I think you have provided a lot of

          5  information we did not have, and that is coming from

          6  someone who sat down with the 911 unions on many

          7  occasion before today, and I have been going through

          8  the situation with them,  I think you have a

          9  different viewpoint on it and that is appreciated.

         10                 There aren't any questions, so thank

         11  you for coming down.

         12                 Is there a Wilton Sekzer, our last

         13  witness for the day.  Mr. Sekzer.  Please identify

         14  yourself, and who, if anyone you are representing or

         15  with today?

         16                 MR. SEKZER:  My name is Wilton

         17  Sekzer.  I am a resident of Queens.  On 9/11 I lost

         18  my son.  I am a 22- year veteran of the New York

         19  City Police Department, following that, I spent 12

         20  years in private security.

         21                 First, let me thank you for the

         22  opportunity to speak.  Having never done this

         23  before, let me apologize for not presenting you with

         24  a copy of my scribbled notes here.

         25                 Let me say from the outset that
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          2  during my entire 22 year career with New York City

          3  Police Department, communications was always a

          4  problem.  And specifically with dead spots in the

          5  City, and weak batteries, and speaking with active

          6  police officers still on the job, apparently that is

          7  still a problem.

          8                 On 9/11 I stood by watching my

          9  television as Tower One collapsed, and I knew my son

         10  was gone.  In the next few hours and the next few

         11  days following that horrific site, my other son

         12  asked me, is it possible that if Jason is trying to

         13  call, they can zero in on where he is, and I said, I

         14  guess that is possible, I said, let's not hope for

         15  too much.  I am sure that all the emergency services

         16  are doing everything they possibly can to find the

         17  victims in the rubble.

         18                 Of course, we came to accept that our

         19  son was gone. Weeks, months went by, it became a

         20  situation where we were watching TV, as Mr. Reed had

         21  pointed out earlier, cops zeroing in on the bad guy

         22  because he used his cell phone and they were

         23  instantly able to find exactly to where he was to

         24  the foot and lock him up and take him away.

         25                 And then came the recent tragedy with
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          2  the four young men.  And again, my son was asking me

          3  questions about a GPS system, and why that tragedy

          4  occurred.  Now I stopped and thought about it, and I

          5  said, let me call a friend of mine in

          6  communications.  And I called him, and I said, what

          7  is going on with that, wasn't it possible to find

          8  them through the GPS?  Willy, he says, that is

          9  hollywood stuff, we do not have that.  I said, you

         10  have got to be kidding, New York City Police

         11  Department doesn't have a GPS type of system at all?

         12    No, they are talking about it, as usual, they have

         13  consultants out there, they are forming committees,

         14  all the usual administrative clap trap that you hear

         15  within government agencies. And I said to myself, I

         16  think that is a total disgrace.

         17                 Since 9/11 I, myself, am concerned

         18  myself of problems of immigration and airport

         19  security, and we have formed a committee to look

         20  into that.  But upon reading Michael Daily's column

         21  recently, I said, this has gone far enough and

         22  something has to be done.  I spoke with Sally and

         23  other people, they invited me down here to speak,

         24  and really that is why I am here.  Something,

         25  obviously, must be done.
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          2                 Now today I sat here and I heard

          3  about funds that have been raised through taxes that

          4  I have paid, and I never really paid attention to.

          5  A fund here, a fund there, none of the money seems

          6  to be coming to New York directly.  Instead, we here

          7  about dollars here and there that are trickling

          8  down, and in other cases no funds that were

          9  specifically assigned to this problem have been

         10  applied.  Perhaps the New York City Police

         11  Department should apply for these funds under the

         12  guise of issuing its members new shoes, as happened

         13  with the State Police, and then they can take the

         14  money and forwarded to where it is supposed to go.

         15                 I find it sadly ironic that places

         16  like Lake County, Michigan, have this process in

         17  place.  I wonder if the total population of Lake

         18  County equals that of my own apartment house. What

         19  is wrong with this picture?

         20                 I am not comfortable knowing that if

         21  I am in need of assistance someplace, that perhaps I

         22  should just throw my cell phone out the window and

         23  rent or purchase a new Cadillac, which comes with

         24  this system.  And I know that I can call a tow

         25  truck, and he will find me, exactly where I am,
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          2  because I am in a new Cadillac, never mind my cell

          3  phone and needing assistance somewhere in the

          4  largest city in the world.

          5                 I find it very heartening that the

          6  tenor of your remarks and the direction that you are

          7  going in.   And I strongly urge you to continue your

          8  quest to get the monies that are deserving of the

          9  system, and to push everyone State government and

         10  the New York City Police Department to move as

         11  quickly and expeditiously as possible.  People's

         12  lives are at stake, this is no longer a situation

         13  where one or two problems are arising.  This is

         14  something that is going to continue to grow in a

         15  problematic area, something must be done.  I thank

         16  you very much for allowing me to make my remarks.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 And as I said, it is because of

         20  people like you that when this change happens, it

         21  will happen sooner rather than later, and hopefully

         22  lives will be saved because of that.

         23                 So thank you for the work that you

         24  are doing in publicizing this outrage that is out

         25  there right now, that not many people know about.
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          2  And thank you for coming down today.

          3                 Thank you.  Okay, this meeting is

          4  over.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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